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ITEM NO.

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT
(ACQUISITION-BASED TAX REFORM)
(C.C. No. 06-146)

86:

2
3

4

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel. )

I'd like to call to order the

5

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting

6

for June 20th, 2006.

7

attendance Members Johnson, Mateo, Molina,

8

Pontanilla, Tavares, Kane.

9

afternoon's meeting is the Vice Chair of the

For the record, we have in

Excused from this

10

Committee, Mr. Hokama, which the Chair will note

11

has provided a memo, Members, dated today in his

12

absence.

13

consideration.

14

afternoon's meeting, Members Carroll and

15

Anderson, and Member Anderson may be able to get

16

back to us today.

17

He's provided some things for your

As well as excused from this

Members, we have one item on the agenda

18

for this afternoon.

19

Item Number 86,

20

to that in your binders.

21

Charter amendment regarding acquisition-based

22

tax reform.

23

It's Budget and Finance

so I will direct your attention
We have a proposed

Members, the Committee is in receipt of

24

County Communication Number 06-146 from Mr. Tony

25

Fisher, Vice Chair of the Committee For More
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1

Equitable Taxation, also known as COMET,

2

submitting a proposed Charter amendment relating

3

to acquisition-based tax reform.
Members, we will be providing this

4

5

committee as far as receiving an overview from

6

of the Members of COMET.

7

will be providing that presentation relating to

8

the aspects of the proposed acquisition-based

9

real property tax system and it will be

I believe Mr.

10

including property valuation,

11

rates and change in ownership.

12

Fisher

real property tax

Members, we also have in attendance this

13

afternoon, our Director of Finance, who will

14

also be provided an opportunity to respond to

15

any questions that you folks may have.

16

also be given an opportunity to provide some

17

remarks with respect to this item that is on

18

today's agenda.

He will

Before we proceed, Members, the Chair

19
20

will open up the testimony phase of this

21

meeting.

We have several

22

testify.

Before we proceed, if you have a cell

23

phone or a pager, we ask that you turn it to the

24

off or silent mode.

25

unnecessary distractions to this meeting.

signed up to

That way we can avoid any
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Those of you signed up to testify, we

1

2

will be providing you with a total of four

3

minutes at the podium.

4

first three minutes and at three minutes, we'll

5

provide you an additional minute to conclude

6

your remarks.

7

name for the record, and if you represent an

8

organization, we'd like to know that information

9

as well.

You'll be given the

If you can, please, state your

Again, if you can state your name.
With that, we have several people signed

10
11

up to testify.

12

testify,

13

followed by Nikhilananda.

Members,

is ,Jim Smith.

He'll be

The Chair also recognizes in attendance

14
15

The first person signed up to

this afternoon Ms. Michelle Anderson.

16
. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY .

17
18
19

MR. SMITH:

Chairperson Kane, Members of the Budget

20

Committee, my name is Jim Smith.

21

express some concerns about the proposition that

22

is before you.

23

I'm here to

I have been involved with this problem

24

of economic fluctuations, especially with regard

25

to tax assessments, and the fine work or some
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1

individuals in Paia who really had enormous

2

respect for this political system and

3

particularly for the legislative branch.

4

they worked very closely with them, and in the

5

context of this work came up with the solution

6

for what at the time and currently is really the

7

only problem, and that is that there is a high

8

and rapid increase in the assessed values of

9

property.

And

That is the problem.

And COMET and Beatrice and George and

10
11

Bill, they recognized that.

12

legislators and they determined the solution

13

would be legislative.

14

It's not a structural problem in our political

15

system.

16

They went to

It should be legislative.

The problem with this particular

17

proposal is that it is an attack upon the

18

legislative branch.

19

away from this

20

innate.

21

confidence to the

22

think more than ever we need to embrace our

23

legislative branch, and that,

24

would be the current group calling themselves

25

COMET would see the wisdom of coming to a

It does propose to take
cular branch powers that are

At the very least, it casts a lack of
and in that respect,

I would hope,
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legislative solution for what, in effect, is the

2

impact of market force upon poor people, poor

3

property owners.

4

The max tax addressed that problem and

5

it underlined that poverty is a public matter.

6

The ideology that came in in '91, which was the

7

introducing of the Circuit Breaker, isolated the

8

indi vidual and took away from the public v,iew

9

the notion that poverty was a public issue.

And

10

the Circuit Breaker has failed in doing what i t

11

was promoted of doing, and it's not the first

12

time and i t ' s 1.5 years later,

13

the failure of a legislative promotion.

but the problem is

Now, the max tax was very, very elegant.

14
15

It was very, very clear.

16

specific.

17

and assessment.

18

anyone in 1987

19

and had ten years of home exemption to that

20

amount.

21

assessment over time.

22

exemption for two years, it put and tied that as

23

their rate.

24

solution.

25

MR. TAGUCHI:

It was very, very

It tied in home exemption with time
It tied in the assessment for
what their assessment was then

So it linked in an exquisite way the
For somebody who had home

That was the problem.

That was the

Three minutes.
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1

MR. SMITH:

Now, it's proposed a structural change.

2

I ask that you avoid that and I ask that the

3

people who are promoting this as an answer

4

return to that respectful and positive approach

5

that seems to have been lost.
Thank you very much.

6

7

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Smith.

8

Members, any questions for Mr. Smith?

9

Seeing none, thank you very much for

10
11

12

13

your testimony.

Next to testify is Nikhilananda.

He'll

be followed by Marcy Martin.
MR. NIKHILANANDA:

Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and

14

Members of the Committee.

15

Nikhilananda, and I'm a resident of Huelo and I

16

want to thank Jim for his comments too because,

17

as we know, property taxes has been a major

18

issue that we really have not been addressing to

19

the level that we have needed to in the last few

20

years and we've seen the result.

21

My name is Nik

I also want to commend

and I know

22

when I say Bill and Tony, I'm leaving out scores

23

of other people who have been involved with

24

COMET and involved with this issue for

25

everything they've done, and it just reminds us
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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that trite phrase that we've heard all the time

2

about never underestimating what a small group

3

of people can do.
There are arguments against this and I

4

5

have to say that I

6

excellent.

7

lliJe need to have this Charter amendment on the

8

ballot.

9

of Maui County an opportunity to be educated and

10

think this proposal is

We need to have a Charter amendment.

res~dents

We need the citizens and the

to be able to make a statement and vote.

There are a few loose ends with this and

11

hope that these will be addressed,

if not in

12

I

13

the Charter amendment, but by this legislative

14

body.

15

homeowners, and this has been voiced previously

16

by other people in other forums.

17

need to be concerned with younger individuals

18

who may be subjected to a disproportionate share

19

of an expense as a result of this Charter

20

amendment.

21

would be appropriate.

22

here,

23

right direction to hold the control of what's

24

been happening to our out of control

25

assessments.

There is a concern for first time

I

And we also

So a couple little tweaks,

I

think,

And yet as it's written

think it is a tremendous step in the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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Now, there's been an argument too that I

1

2

recently

was presented to me about that,

"Oh,

3

no,

4

the Budget for this County and then workers for

5

the County will be affected negatively because

6

there won't be enough money," and I think this

7

is a fallacious argument but it was voiced to me

8

by a number of people and I think that, again,

9

in the discussions and the debates about this,

this is going to result in a reduction of

10

all of these arguments against need to be

11

addressed so we really get a strong amendment

12

and we do make an improvement for the property

13

tax owners of this County.
And also I want to specifically thank

14

15

Tony for this, it's not just property owners, it

16

affects everybody because the -- as the property

17

tax values go up, the assessments go up and I've

18

explained this in other forums also.

19

property has now gone up four times in nine

20

years of what it's valued and my property tax

21

has gone up five times from one year, and I

22

think this is unacceptable.
So again,

23

really good, strong debate.

25

amendment on the ballot.

Put this Charter

Allow the citizens an

ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

opportunity this November to be able to have an

2

opportunity to vote on this Charter amendment

3

and to move this County forward in assisting

4

people who are owners of property in a place

5

that has been -- the speculation is just out of

6

control, and again, I want to --

7

MR. TAGUCHI:

8

MR. NIKHILANANDA:

9

Three minutes.
underline to be concerned about

two areas that I did mention, and I want to

10

mention again, and that's first time

11

homeowners

12

home buyers.
Thank you.

13

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

16

Thank you.
Members, any questions for our

testifier, Mr. Nikhilananda?

17
18

Hearing none, thank you very much for
your testimony.

19

MR. NIKHILANANDA:

20

CHAIE KANE:

21
22

home buyers and especially younger

Thank you very much.

Next to testi

be followed
MS. MAETIN:

She'll

William D. Tavares.

My name is Marcy Martin and I'm here

23

today to testi

24

property taxes.

25

is Marcy Martin.

against acquisition-based real

For every property program, there are
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1

winners and losers.

With acquisition-based real

2

property taxes the losers are first time home

3

buyers.

4

the tax burden from people who have owned

5

property for years to new buyers, many of whom

6

are first time buyers.

The proposed program ultimately shifts

Owners who improve their properties will

7
8

also be penalized.

9

home.

My neighbors' homes average 1,600 square

10

feet.

If I put a COO square foot addition,

11

will be taxed higher than them because it took

12

me eight extra years to afford a home the same

13

size as theirs.

14

I have a 1,000 square foot

I

That doesn't seem fair.

Property owners who trade up will be

15

penalized.

16

bought her first home for $180,000 and she had

17

no children.

18

her home is worth $800,000.

19

to move because her taxes will increase

20

444 percent.

21

My sister lives in California.

She

Now, she has three children and
She cannot afford

With the proposed change, successful

22

businesses will be penalized with higher taxes

23

which will create unfair competition.

24

tax businesses at their sale price alone, you

25

will be taxing real property in addition to real

If you

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

estate, branding, FFE and going concerning

2

value.

3

will be charged higher taxes not because of the

4

real property that they occupy, but because they

5

have better management.

6

not do this.

This means that successful businesses

The current system does

The County government will lose

7

Currently, the Councilor

8

flexibility.

9

Administration could increase taxes at four

10

percent.

We don't need a new ordinance to do

11

this.

12

multiply it times 1.04 and divide by the

13

assessed values.

14

when the current ordinance can accomplish what

15

is ultimately proposed in this change?

Simply take last year's revenues,

Why implement a new ordinance

16

If the County limits its ability to tax,

17

its credit rating will be diminished and we will

18

all pay for higher debt service.
These past few years, most taxpayers in

19
20

the homeowner class have had a reduction in

21

taxes.

22

not happen.

23

after year like insurance.

24
25

With this proposed system, that would
Taxes would increase slightly year

As I mentioned, with every tax program
there are winners and losers.

With
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1

acquisition-based real property tax programs,

2

the winners are the most wealthy property

3

owners.

4

means that high value properties generally

5

receive more of the benefits than median and

6

lower valued properties.

It is a regressive tax program which

My final comment is that --

7

8

MR. TAGUCHI:

9

MS. MARTIN:

Three minutes.
laws need to stand the test of time.

10

Values are already beginning to stabilize.

11

will be done if values decrease?

12

to tax the long term homeowner more than the

13

newcomer?

What

Are you going

14

It is for all the reasons above that I

15

am against the proposed acquisition-based real

16

property tax program.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Members, any questions for our

18
19

20

testifier?

Member Anderson.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21
22

Thank you, Ms. Martin.

Ms. Martin, are you employed by the
County of Maui?

23

MS. MARTIN:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

Thank you.

No.

I left on

- in May '06.

Did you contribute as a

valuation analyst for the Finance Real Property
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

Division on the January 17th, 2006 letter that

2

is submitted under this item?

3

MS. MARTIN:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

Most likely, yes.

disclosed that so --

6

MS. MARTIN:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

9
10

I think you should have

Okay.

background.
CHAIR KANE:

we would know your

Thank you very much.

Any additional questions for our

testifier?

11

Hearing none, thank you very much.

12

Next to testify,

I have signed up

13

Mr. Tavares but Mr. Tavares will not be

14

testifying.

15

Next after him is Mr. John Blumer-Buell.

16

And I'll note Mr. Blumer-Buell asked to be

17

signed up twice because he wanted to be one

18

executive committee for COMET as well as for

19

self.

20

the distinction in your testimony and we'll give

21

you a total of four minutes to do so, though.

22
23

24
25

itJe'll recognize you, sir.

MR. BLUMER-BUELL:

Thank you very much.

You can make

Good

afternoon, Council Members and Chair Kane.
First, I'm going to testify as a member
of the COMET executive committee and I want to
RI\LPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

say we've thoroughly discussed this proposal a

2

number of times, and I'm 100 percent behind the

3

proposed Charter amendment.
And I think really the issue -- the

4

5

biggest issue for me is whether you think

6

it's

7

think it's good or you don't like it.

8

what we're saying at this point is let the very

9

people that elected all of you make the

you're not sure about it or whether you
I think

10

decision.

11

Let's put it on the ballot in November and let

12

the people decide.

l3

Let's just put i t on the charter.

And I respect Jim Smith, who is no

14

longer here, but I don't agree with him that

15

this is a slap at the legislative branch of

16

government.

17

government is supposed to reflect the people of

18

the County, and let's put this on the ballot and

19

see if it reflects the opinion of the people of

20

the County.

21

Rega

The legislative branch of

this issue from the COMET

22

perspective, I'm going to defer answering any

23

questions for COMET and defer to Tony Fisher,

24

who I have a 100 percent confidence in.

25

some tough questions;

There's

First time homeowners,
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1

does it hurt retirees, does it produce less

2

revenue, does it complicate the tax system, does

3

it allow the County Council to participate in

4

the tax rates?

5

important questions.

There's a lot of good and
I defer to Tony on that.

Now, I'm going to testify as an

6
7

individual, and I don't expect

please don't

8

allow what I'm about to say to confuse what's on

9

the table today, but I gave a ride to the

10

airport yesterday to a couple of friends of

11

mine.

12

friends,

13

as usual.

14

their property tax problems.

15

years ago and have tried to help them over the

16

years, but they are hurting from the current

17

property tax system.

18

They happen to be Hawaiian.

They're good

and we were talking about everything,

And I really heard in depth about
I helped them out

And I proposed this before, but I'm

19

going to put it forward in your

It

20

may be part of some future ordinance that you

21

consider.

22

new property tax category called the Legacy or

23

Aloha Aina Tax Category.

24

families to permanently, I mean forever, put

25

their lands into a family trust forever.

And I'm going to -- I'm propos

a

This would allow

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

people want to take it out, the penalties would

2

be extreme.

3

Hawaiians would put their property right into it

4

because they don't consider the land a

5

commodity.

But I can assure you that most

6

MR. TAGUCHI:

Three minutes.

7

MR. BLUMER-BUELL:

8

a commodity.

9

is their birth right, and it's not a commodity

Our tax system considers the land
This is a -- the Hawaiians' land

And I think it's time to recognize

10

to them.

11

that the United States Congress and the

12

President of the United States signed an apology

13

bill to the Hawaiians for the illegal overthrow

14

of the Hawaiian kingdom.

15

dead wrong that a number of my Hawaiian

16

neighbors in Hana are getting really hurt by the

17

tax situation, and we need to establish a

18

category that will protect them.

19

It doesn't mean

And I think it's just

won't pay taxes,

20

but we certainly don't want anyone to be thrown

21

out of the land that was given to them by their

22

families and the king.

23

consideration and aloha.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

So I thank you for your

Members, any questions for

Mr. Blumer-Buell'!
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Hearing none, thank you very much for

1

2

your testimony.
Melissa Prince.

3
4

5

She'll be followed by

Buck Joiner.
MS. PRINCE:

Good afternoon.

I'm Melissa Prince and

6

I would like to thank you all for scheduling a

7

meeting to consider a proposed Charter

8

amendment.
As I've testified before,

9

I think that

10

the acquisition-based tax reform would give

11

relief to long time homeowners as well as second

12

homeowners who use their properties for long

13

term affordable rentals.

14

to be families who want to give the property to

15

their children, their adult children, and so in

16

the meantime they rent it out and they want to

17

keep it in an affordable rental.

18

the second home is not sheltered by the

19

homeowners exemption and Circuit Breaker, it has

20

really hit renters very hard with the

21

assessments jumping up high.

Oftentimes, that tends

And so since

So I think that this amendment would

22
23

really help the affordable rental market, and

24

also just in general, I think that we need tax

25

reform.

And I listened to the earlier speakers
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1

and the woman that was saying that she was

2

opposing it.

3

know,

4

fair share when the property changes hands but

5

they should pay their fair share and I think the

6

opposite is true.

7

property tax reform, it really hurts the low

8

income residents the hardest.

I think that the realtors -- you

they don't like the idea of paying their

So anyway,

9

I think if we don't have

so I

just want to say thank

10

you very much and please adopt a resolution to

11

initiate an amendment to establish an

12

acquisition-based real property tax system.

13

Thank you.

14

CHAIR KANE:

testifier?

17
18

Hearing none,

thank you for your

testimony.
Buck Joiner followed

19
20

Prince.

Members, any questions for our

15
16

Thank you, Ms.

MR. JOINER:

Aloha ka kou.

Michael Trotto.

Buck Joiner speaking as

21

an individual.

22

property, which is in long term rental and has

23

been for decades.

24
25

I am a homeowner and I also own

I would like to speak in favor of this
proposition and urge you to move this forward as
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1

a fair and reasonable proposal.

My property tax

2

rate of increase is many times the rate of

3

increase of my income.

4

have no choice but to pass the increases in

5

property tax onto the renters.

And as a landlord, I

COMET has promoted this concept for

6

7

years.

It is important to note that we are not

8

inventing the wheel here.

9

other communities and are applying those lessons

We have learned from

10

for Maui.

11

the people and for the people in its purest

12

sense.

13

This is a proposal of the people by

I feel that it is being addressed by the

14

County Council after all this time only because

15

of the threat that COMET will acquire the number

16

of signatures to put it on the ballot

17

independent of action by the Council, and I

18

believe that your level of action may be

19

directly related to the number of signatures

20

COMET acquires, therefore,

21

my energies to making that list grow

I do here

dedicate

22

I urge you to move this forward faster

23

than the rate of signature acquisitions on the

24

petitions and demonstrate that you are, indeed,

25

acting of the people, by the people and for the
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1
2

people.

Mahalo.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

3

Members, any questions for Mr. Joiner?

4

Hearing none, thank you for your

5

testimony.
Next to testi

6

7
8

MR. TROTTO:

is Michael Trotto.

Thank you, Chair Kane, Members of the

Council.
It's been a long, long road,

9

17 years

10

when I

11

support of COMET and other people that were

12

trying to get property tax reform.

13

first came to talk about these issues in

And I come here the same way, humbly and

14

respectfully to ask that you move this forward.

15

We have come many times, like I said, in the

16

past, in the past years to request

17

respectfully request some action in these areas.

18

And I want to thank you over these

19

years, you and those that have sat in your seats

20

before you that we've addressed,

21

the efforts that you've put forward so far,

22

know, Circuit Breaker, homeowners exemptions,

23

these have all been beneficial to our residents.

24
25

thank you for
you

But the real key here is getting these
assessments and getting some real reform to help
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1

all of our residents, primarily our residents,

2

long term residents who have seen their property

3

values go up and their tax bills get higher and

4

higher, and sometimes these offsets that you've

5

allowed us to have just don't work as well as

6

planned.
So again, respectfully and humbly,

7

I

8

come to ask you to move this forward because

9

what we want to do now, we don't want to bypass

10

you.

We want you to be an integral part of this

11

movement,

12

the people.

13

the voters of this County and let's let them

14

decide.

to get this thing going, to take it to
Let's bring it to the residents,

Let's see what happens when we do that.
We've come here.

15

We've talked to you.

16

We've asked and, we just haven't gotten where we

17

need to go and where we want to be.

18

thank you for your efforts all along all these

19

years, but please look to move this proposal

20

forward.

21
22
23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

So again,

And I thank you very much.
Thank you, Mr. Trotto.
Members, any questions for our

testifier?
Hearing none, thank you,

sir, for your

testimony.
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We don't have anybody else signed up to

1
2

testify at this time.

3

ask if there is anybody here in the chamber that

4

has not testified that would like to, we need

5

you to step forward now, otherwise we will be

6

closing testimony for this afternoon.
Yes, ma' am.

7

Members, your Chair will

Please come forward.

If

8

you can state your name for the record and then

9

we'll have you sign up once you've completed

10

your testimony.

You have a total of four

11

minutes, ma'am.

We'll let you know at three

12

minutes of that time.

13

MS. STRONG:

Thank you, sir.

Aloha, Council, Chair

14

Kane.

I thank you for the privilege to speak

15

here.

My name is Mahealani Strong.

16

Executive Director of the West Maui Taxpayers

17

Association.

I'm the

I debated testifying earlier but I feel

18

19

now that if you don't,

I do a great injustice to

20

this cause because I am the problem that's been

21

created.

22

family of five and we are looking to purchase a

23

new home, have been for the last two years.

24

we were renting in Lahaina and our rent went

25

from 1,000 to 2,000 to 2,500.

I have family of five

excuse me, a

And to put it
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1

simply, I've been chased out of West Maui and I

2

now reside in Wailuku where my rent is $1,200

3

for a home the same size.
And I make pretty standard income, you

4

5

know, and I work additional hours in order so we

6

can save up enough money to become

7

the down-payment that we need, and we're

8

struggling because of the threat of rental

9

increases because we have property taxes that

10

to have

just continue to go up.

You know, I beg to differ with the

11

I

12

believe,

13

increases go up and the threat of a new home

14

buyer having to come in and pay the increase of

15

400,000, well that new homeowner would feel it

16

regardless of whatever came in.

17

that

18

property tax rate regardless of the previous

19

owners having to pay it while it increased.

20

Diane that spoke earlier,

that when tax

They would

they would feel the growth of the

So I have to say

I have the authority

21

of the board and we just met with our meeting

22

earlier today to show that we are in full

23

support of what COMET is doing and what this

24

group of fine individuals are trying to prevent

25

from happening to my children.

And 1 thank you
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1

2

for your time.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, ma'am.

3

Members, any questions for Ms. Strong?

4

Hearing none, thank you for your

5

testimony.

And if you can please, we have a

6

sign up sheet right here.
Is there anybody else who has not signed

7
8

up to the testify that would like to testify?

9

Now is your opportunity to come forward.
Mr. Fisher, are you going to testify,

10
11

12

sir?
MR. FISHER:

I'm Tony Fisher.

My understanding was

13

that you were going to give us the opportunity

14

to go sit down and have an overview, which is

15

what the paper -- is that going to happen?

16

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, sir.

17

MR. FISHER:

Okay.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

And again, let me ask if

19

there's

20

not testified that would like to testi

21

your opportunity to come forward.

22

here in the audience that has
,now is

Seeing nobody approach, Members, without

23

objections, we're going to close the public

24

testimony phase of this meeting.

25

obj ections '?

Any
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1

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

2

. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY .

3
4

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Hearing none, Members, at this
I believe Mr. Tavares

6

time the Chair will ask

7

and Mr. Fisher are going to be coming forward to

8

provide a presentation of the COMET proposal.

9

We have two seats set up for them here in the

10

front and we'll provide them that opportunity.

11

Members, so that we have some sense of
Fisher, it's my

12

time in this presentation, Mr.

13

understanding that in communications with our

14

staff that we'll be looking at a presentation of

15

roughly around 20 minutes, give or take.

16

that -

17

for you, sir?

18

MR. FISHER:

Is

is that an appropriate amount of time

Yes, sir.

Let me just make the
What we're

to do is

19

following comment:

20

Bill is going to have a very brief opening, I'm

21

going to have a brief opening, and my suggestion

22

then is to go through 20 to 30 minutes, during

23

which time I think it would be advantageous if

24

we were to take questions rather than wait until

25

the end and then have to go back again, but we
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1

will do it at the Chair's -- the way you feel it

2

should be done.

That is our suggestion.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

4

MR. FISHER:

So if it's okay with you, Bill Tavares

5

6

will start off this.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Before we start -- and thank you

7

for your comments, Mr. Fisher -- Members, the

8

Chair's recommendation for you is because 'we

9

also have the Director of Finance here as well

10

as Corporation Counsel here,

11

the COMET organization their opportunity to

12

provide a presentation of between 20 minutes,

13

give or take some time for them to complete

14

their comments, and at that time also provide

15

the Director of Finance his opportunity for

16

comments as well as Corporation Counsel, and

17

then open it up for questions.

18

I want to provide

So I ask Members, if you could please,

19

if you have questions as we go through the

20

presentations, we ask that you write down your

21

comments or remarks or questions that you may

22

have and so we can all participate in a question

23

and answer component that includes everybody

24

that's sitting up in front.

25

Okay.

Members,

are there any objections
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1

to moving forward with that?

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

5

Okay.

Hearing no objections, Mr. Fisher

and Mr. Tavares, good afternoon.
MR. TAVARES:

I am Bill Tavares, a resident of Kuau

6

for nearly 85 years and chairman of COMET, the

7

Committee for More Equitable Taxation, since it

8

was established in 1988.

9

Ladies and gentlemen, this could be a

10

historic day.

11

unceasing efforts to bring about meaningful

12

property tax reform may finally bear fruit.

13

There have been many peaks and valleys in

14

COMET's unrelenting efforts but this day could

15

well be the highest peak we have attained.

16

After 18 long years COMET's

Now, some time ago while going through

17

some old COMET files and, believe me, there are

18

boxes and boxes of them at home,

19

I was

antly surprised to come across this article

20

in the Maui News issue of February 27th, 1989.

21

It is one of the columns that I used to write

22

for the Maui News for eleven years.

23

column from 1981 to 1992 when my heart attack

24

stopped that.

25

I wrote a

Now, let me read parts of it -- just
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1

parts of it.

Headline:

"Mayor Takes Property

2

Tax Proposal To Community Meeting."

3

here, "The power to tax is not the power to

4

destroy," so said Oliver Wendell Holmes, Junior,

5

one of the nation's greatest Supreme Court

6

Justices in 1930.

7

Hannibal Tavares quoting from his bill for an

8

ordinance amending the Maui County Code

9

pertaining to real property tax valuations

A quote

Echoing his sentiments, Mayor

10

stated that, quote, "Under the present system of

11

assessed values based on comparable sales, many

12

of our residents are burdened with taxes which

13

have increased by very high percentages.

14

have been forced to sell homes they have lived

15

in for many years," end of his quote.

Some

16

Now, here's where I take up again, "In

17

other words, some Maui residents are literally

18

being destroyed by the real property tax.

19

Speaking to 75 frightened and angry residents of

20

the Paia-Kuau

21

called by COMET, the Mayor explained that his

22

proposal submitted to the Maui County Council on

23

November the 2nd, 1989 would roll back and

24

freeze residential property taxes and

25

assessments to the assessed values of 1985."

co~~unity

at a recent meeting
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I have been trying to find a copy of

1

2

that but so far no results.
"In addition, the 1985 value and the

3
4

assessment would remain the same unless the

5

owner sells or improves the property."

6

listen to this key statement.

7

sells the property, the new buyer establishes

8

the value by the price he paid for it."
Sound familiar?

9

And

"If the owner

Mayor Hannibal

10

Tavares's proposal in 1989 is identical with

11

what one of two major parts of the Charter

12

amendment being discussed today.

13

Mayor Tavares was followed by a mayor who did

14

not approve of COMET's proposals.

15

Hannibal Tavares was the only mayor, the only

16

mayor, I repeat that, who ever supported COMET's

17

proposal.

18

Unfortunately,

Indeed, Mayor

COMET, once again, urges this Council to

19

seize this historic moment and allow the voters

20

of Maui County to establish a truly equitable

21

and just property tax system, and thus we ask

22

that you pass a resolution per the Maui County

23

Charter to place COMET's Charter amendment on

24

the November 7th ballot.

25

MR. FISHER:

Thank you, Bill.

Thank you.
And I just have a
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1

couple of relatively brief remarks to start off

2

with because, again, I

3

historic moment.

4

100 years that Maui County will have the

5

opportunity to have a citizen initiated Charter

6

amendment be voted upon by the public.

7

think that's a big, big deal.

8

moment.

9

thank you for this

This is the first time in over

And before I

And we

It is an historic

get going, I

just want to

10

make three points relative to some of the other

11

conversation that has been in here:

12

Number one,

that is not

repeat,

not,

13

not, not, not, not Proposition 13, and anybody

14

who makes that statement obviously doesn't know

15

anything about Prop 13 nor they do anything

16

about our Charter amendment.

17

Number two, its basic objective is to

18

increase revenue.

Increase revenue.

It is not,

19

as the people on Kauai did, try to chop the

20

income of the County in order to restrict the

21

ability of the County to do business.

22

absolutely and positively not our objective.

23

The numbers that we have developed from County

24

statistics; that is the sale of property, say --

25

and I've used this number a lot of times -- that

That is
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1

our best estimate is that it will -- that the

2

properties that were sold in the five-year

3

period were undervalued by three billion dollars

4

resulting in a 15 million dollar underincome for

5

the County.

6

year to year to year basis, this is hardly

7

cutting taxes.

8
9

Now, when you take that money on a

That's not the objective of it.

And the third part is the fundamental
approach of this is to shift the responsibility

10

for overpaying taxes, which is what is the way

11

it is now,

12

houses a whole long time t.o the people who are

13

flipping property, so-called speculators.

14

we're taking it from the long-term people of the

15

County of Maui and putting it on the people that

16

are flipping real estate.

17

You know,

from people who have lived in their

I'm always amused

So

because

18

there were a couple of comments made, and I'm

19

going to read you -- everybody got one of these

20

who owns a piece of property, and word for word

21

what it says is,

22

is the number that's on the front of the card,

23

"represents our estimate of the full market

24

value of your property."

25

Now, I

"The assessed valuation," that

don't know any way in the world
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1

to better evaluate the full market value than

2

what somebody just paid for it.

3

better way to do that, then I don't understand

4

it.

5

says,

6

true," and I'll be honest with you, it's not

7

true; otherwise our three billion dollar number

8

would not be correct.

If there is a

So the tax department has put on a card and
"We, the County of Maui expect this to be

But enough of that.,

Our goal today is not to approve this

9

10

concept.

11

to go and pass an ordinance or do anything of

12

that nature.

13

allow the people of the County of Maui to make

14

that determination as a couple of the testifiers

15

said.

16

We are not asking the County Council

What we are asking you to do is to

Bill and I were in a meeting with one of

17

the County Council members a couple of months

18

ago, and at the conclusion of that meeting, he

19

today stood up and said,

20

think we need to let the people of Maui make

21

this decision and let them vote."

22

"You kno\<v what?

I

I wrote a viewpoint article a couple of

23

Sundays ago, as I hope a lot of you read,

and

24

the headlines that -- and I do didn't write this

25

headline by the way,

"The County Council is
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1

being asked to let voters decide property tax

2

reform."

3

that is something where we've heard some

4

disparate comments back and forth,

5

the people of Maui ought to be given a chance to

6

say we agree with COMET or we agree with some of

7

the remarks that were made.

8

reasonable thing.

I think that is very appropriate, that

and I think

That is a perfectly

So what I'm asking the Members of the

9
10

County Council to do today is to say,

11

whether it's right or wrong or it needs to be

12

tickled here and there in order to be changed

13

and we do not have a problem with that.

14

the document the way that it was written, and I

15

assume that all of you have a copy.

16

was written, it says we can change this thing

17

with the approval of five of us who are on the

18

last page and Corporation Counsel.

19

had a meeting one time with Corporation Counsel

20

to make a determination of exactly how to word

21

that.

22

okay,

Even

The way it

We actually

Every -- and I want to make this point

23

also, every aspect of the charter is open to

24

discussion.

25

We have never been that way, with one exception.

We are not my way or the highway.
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1

The statement of,

2

changes need to be made."

3

of the Administration, then we have to take

4

great, great umbrage at that kind of stateme'nt.

5

"It's not broken and no
If that's the opinion

For instance, Ginny and Robert Karpovich

6

sent a letter to the Finance Department with

7

some very, very out of -- off the wall kind of

8

situations, and they got back a letter from the

9

Finance Department that said, "You're absolutely

10

right.

11

a copy of it.

12

instances of that nature.

13

simpler system and we're working our way.

14

These are

these are wrong."

He's got

I'm sure there are hundreds of
This is a much

The Charter amendment petition

15

parenthesis I call that CAP.

16

wonderful that the people that wrote the County

17

Charter years ago discovered that there was

18

going to be a group called COMET some day and

19

were

I think it's

to try to cap property taxes,

20

they named the process Charter amendment

21

petition, c-a-p.

22

that they had the foresight to do that.

23

so

And I think it's wonderful

And so the Charter amendment petition is

24

submitted under lI.rticle 14-1-1 of the County

25

Charter which asks the County Council by at
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1

least a six to three vote to initiate a

2

resolution to place the amendment on the

3

November ballot.

4

says to any of the Council members, "I thereby

5

put my hand up and say I approve or disapprove

6

of this."

7

people of Maui County to make a proper

8

determination."

9

it down, and if it's good, they will not vote it

It in no way shape or manner

It is merely to say, "I trust the

And if it's bad, they will vote

10

down and they will approve it.

11

people of Maui County deserve that opportunity.

12

And I think the

COMET has begun the process of gathering

13

the 7500 to 15,000 signatures to place the

14

amendment on the ballot as suggested by Articles

15

14-1 numbers 2 and 3, which says 10 percent, 20

16

percent, and I'm not going to get into that.

17

have collected almost 1,000 signatures already

18

and we haven't even started.

19

here and there.

20

Corporation Counsel and the County Clerk to

21

ensure we do that task correctly.

22

have already been some questions but we al

23

have -- we have 750 pages of petition forms

24

I'll show you a page of that

25

these have been approved by both the County

We

That was just from

And we work with the

I know there

out there, and
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1

Council -- I'm sorry, by Corporation Counsel and

2

by the County Clerk as being correct and we

3

have -- we have bent over backwards to try to do

4

that the way that they have asked us to do it.
I would like to suggest that there have

5

6

been significant changes since the last full

7

discussion of this Charter amendment or in its

8

previous form, which was a request for an

9

ordinance -- a bill for an ordinance.

And as

10

such,

I want to go through the four-page

11

document that I hope you all have and explain

12

each paragraph very briefly.

13

Chairman has suggested that you not

14

interrupt -- I don't care.

That is not my call,

15

that is his call

16

along.

17

long, probably the longest one you could

18

imagine, but there are some very, very, very

and ask questions as we go

This is not a complicated thing.

It's

19

ficant changes that we have made over the

20

months and years in order to make sure that we

21

adapt it to what the Council members, the

22

Administration have asked us to do.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Fisher, before you go any further

24

MR. FISHER:

Yes, sir.

25

CHAIR KA}lE:

-- and forgive me just before you start,

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524 2596

39

BF 6/20/06

1

Members, I'm going to, again, be clear because

2

Mr. Fisher made a comment that I made the

3

decision, and let me again ask you and

4

reiterate, are there any objections to your

5

Chair's recommendation on how we proceed

6

forward?

7

presentation to be made, allow our Department of

8

Finance, who has the expertise in the Finance

9

Department -- that's who we rely on -- to

That is, that we allow the

10

provide comment, as well as if there is any

11

comment from Corporation Counsel to provide

12

everybody their chance to give their

13

presentations and then we engage in a question

14

and answer.

15

proceeding in the manner?

Again, is there any objections to

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Member Anderson, you have a comment?
Yeah.

I think this is a

19

very complex issue and I think we should be

20

allowed to ask questions to each presenter.

21

the time Mr. Fisher is done, then we have Corp.

22

Counsel and then we have Finance, it's going to

23

be hard to go backwards and remember what

24

Mr. Fisher said that prompted the question, so

25

that's my objection, but I will yield to the
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1

2

majority of the Council.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, any other question or

3

comment?

4

asked you folks if there is anything that you

5

wanted to touch on, please write down the

6

questions so that when we do come back, you have

7

that information in front of you.
Member Tavares?

8

9

And again to reiterate, that's why I

MR. TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I

just

I have no

10

objection to proceeding the way you're

11

suggesting to get the entire presentation first

12

with comments, but I would ask that after that

13

point, that we go through it from the beginning

14

so that we're not jumping allover the place in

15

the proposal, because I think some questions

16

that may come up in the beginning part may help

17

to clarify things in a later section in the

18

proposal, so I would just make that request.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Members, and the request, if I

20

understand, Member Tavares' request is that once

21

we go

22

four-page document, which is the Maui County

23

Charter Amendment Proposal, and we go through it

24

starting from the beginning and walk through it

25

in an orderly fashion and then discuss the

the Q and A that we go through the
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1

issues as they arise in an orderly fashion; is

2

that correct?

3

MR. TAVARES:

That's correct, Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

6

CHAIR KANE:

Members, any objections?

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Mr. Fisher, thank you, sir.

7

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

CHAIR KANE:

10

Mr. Chair?

Member Anderson?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON;

For clarification?

Are we

11

going to be referencing, as Mr. Fisher goes

12

through the doc.ument that was attac.hed to the

13

December 23rd letter to Mr. Young?

14
15

CHAIR KANE:

I believe, Member

excuse me,

Mr. Fisher, your --

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

MR. FISHER:

May 17th.

19

CHAIR KANE:

With the

Dated--

reference point is the May 17th?

15th cover letter as well

20

as the four-page document which is the proposal;

21

is that what you're referencing, Mr. Fisher?

22

The County communication, Members, is

23

06146 dated May 17th.

The next page is the

24

cover letter from Mr. Fisher signed on May 15th,

25

and then in that is a four-page proposal.
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1

2
3

Mr. Fisher?
MR. FISHER:
week.

Lance, I gave you a new document last
Do they not have that?

4

CHAIR KANE:

And that one is dated June 14th?

5

MR. FISHER:

Right, that's the document.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

7

MR. TAGUCHI:

That should be in your binders.

8

MR. TAVARES:

The next one.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Taguchi?

So Members, right after that, there is a

10

subsequent submittal, which is the revised

11

portion that Mr. Fisher is referencing.

12

dated ,June 14th,

13

Members?

16
17

to be using as a reference point for guide ...
MR. FISHER:

Yes, sir.

In other words, it is a cover

letter and a four-page document.
You have that?

18
19

Everybody there,

Mr. Fisher, that's the one we're going

14

15

2006.

Just so we're not

comparing apples and oranges.

20

CHAIR KANE:

No.

21

MR. FISHER:

Thank you.

22

CHAIR KANE:

We appreciate that,

23

24
25

It's

Thank you.

reference point.
MR. FISHER:

Okay.

just so we have our

Thank you.

As mentioned earlier, just to

start from the top of the first page, excluding
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

43
BF 6/20/06

1

the letter, we are asking today that you vote

2

and approve to go and do the research necessary

3

to have a resolution to put a -- this as a

4

Charter amendment on the November 7th ballot.

5

That's what the top says.
We are amending Chapter 4, which is the

6
7

Finance Department -- frankly,

the things that

8

are in that particular section are not in

9

particularly orderly manner so we -- in order to

10

not pick out them in random order, we did the

11

whole chapter.
Section 1 -- so therefore Section 4 of

12

13

the County Charter Amendment

14

is amended by adding the following,

15

follows would be the amendment which would be

16

included in the next issue of this particular

17

document.

so all that

Section 1, and this is the heart of the

18

19

County Charter

1

we propose that all property

I know

20

there have been some questions about is this

21

homeowners

22

All properties in the County of Maui shall be

23

increased annually by no more than four percent

24

of the annual

25

CPI increase, as published by the United States

the answer is absolutely not.

four percent or the national
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1

Government, whichever is less.

And the one

2

we're using is the one that is used for the

3

increase in Social Security.

4

October 1 amount which is -- everybody in the

5

world is familiar with, particularly those

6

over 65.

That's the

The assessment represents the full cash

7

8

value of the property and, as so, i t is to be

9

collected and apportioned according to law.

10

Assessments also shall not be decreased by

11

greater than four percent annual if the CPI goes

12

down.

13

That was in answer to a comment that was

14

made earlier about the fact that what happens if

15

real estate really goes down abruptly?

16

would be the first,

17

knowledge, political organization in the United

18

States that actually put a floor in addition to

19

a ceiling,

20
21

You

to the best of our

so there's an up cap and a down cap.

Now,

the second thing about this is the

that Bill pointed out if you

this is

22

really one of the two major segments of this

23

particular Charter amendment.

24

the one that Bill alluded to, which is a change

25

in ownership -- and I know there are some people

The other one was
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1

that don't understand the term change in

2

ownership.

3

up

4

with some other wording, that would be fine.

5

have tried this on with a number of people, by

6

the way, who say, by the way, change of

7

ownership best describes what goes on.

8

legalese in there mayor may not be that

9

beneficial.

I

guess if somebody wanted to come

if Corporation Counsel wished to come up
I

And any

Any property that has a change in

10

11

ownership during the period January 1 to

12

December 31 of each year shall be reassessed at

13

whatever the purchase price was for the

14

property.

15

the date of the transfer and taxes for the next,

16

either the first or second, installment shall be

17

paid

18

and shall be paid at the then-current tax rate,

19

which you'll notice the tax rates follow and

20

they are the ones that you just voted into

21

effect.

22

tax rate within seven working days of the filing

23

of reconveyance with the State of Hawaii.

24
25

This assessment shall be effective

shall be due at the time of the transfer

And shall be paid at the then-current

A copy of this filing -- because we got
into a very deep discussion with some people
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1

about how difficult it was to go and get the

2

numbers and they had all these things, so we

3

went and talked at length to some people in the

4

escrow business and said,

5

problem?"

6

furthermore, we don't understand why Maui does

7

it this way.

8

majority of the United States does this."

9

actually sat down and wrote some language with a

They said,

"Is this a big

"Yes, it is, and

This is not the way the great
So we

10

couple of different people in the industry and

11

they came up with the following:

12

A copy of this filing, meaning the

13

reconveyance, plus the TMK, the name and mailing

14

address of both the buyer and the seller,

15

transfer date and price paid -- and we added

16

this in fairly recently -- and a copy of a

17

homeowner exemption certificate, if applicable,

18

which will be used to provide the homeowner

19

exemption simultaneously with the reassessment.
All of this information shall be

20
21

included and sent to the Real Property Tax

22

Department, County of Maui.

23

up and said,

24

that," and so we added the next sentence, which

25

says,

Somebody then came

"Nobody will pay any attention to

"Failure to comply with this requirement
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1

shall result in a fine of $1,000 or 30 days in

2

jailor both."

3

"Good.

4

behind the comment and this is not just some

5

something that people will not understand."

6

This is to get the information to the Real

7

Property Tax Division.

That at least puts a little weight

The reason we put homeowners exemption

8

9

And a number of people said,

in there, which is a relatively recent thing, is

10

that a lady called me up -- and I get calls

11

almost every day or e-mails almost every day

12

that say,

13

"and by the way, have you thought about this?"

14

Well, one of these by the ways was that somebody

15

sold

16

December which had formerly been a rental.

17

were going to move in.

18

homeowner exemption function to occur prior to

19

January 1st, so it didn't occur until the next

20

January 1st.

21

"Good work.

Keep it up," et cetera,

somebody bought a piece of property in
They

They could not get the

And unfortunately, they were also

for Circuit Breaker, but you can't have

22

a Circuit Breaker until you've got a homeowner

23

exemption so they had to wait yet another year.

24

And of course, if you're really familiar with

25

the Circuit Breaker, it doesn't really pay you
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1

any money until the next year.
And she said,

2

"Is there some way that

3

you can get the homeowners exemption to occur at

4

the time of transfer?"

5

put this kind of language in here, that ought to

6

work just fine."

7

this problem in the past

and I've had a

8

couple of other people say,

"Oh, yeah,

9

through just exactly that," this will make that

10

And I said,

"Well, if we

So any people that have had

I went

all go away as a problem.

This also means that the Real Property

11

12

Tax Department will be informed of the

13

transaction and not have to wait what we have

14

been told is three to six months in order to get

15

the information.
The next section deals with the tax

16
17

rates.

We have done a couple of things there.

18

First of all, we have reduced the number of tax
from 20 to 10, and the way we have

19
20

done that is we have combined the land and the

21

building into just one tax rate.

22

cases

23

could not find any place where they weren't the

24

same and that is just extra confusion.

25

In all

and we went back quite a while and we

The tax rates that we put in there are
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1

the current ones, the ones that you just voted

2

to take into effect on July 1st.

3

Now, one of the things we obvious

4

discovered in all of the research we have done

5

is that the great majority of the taxing

6

authorities in the United States have their

7

assessments and the setting of their tax rates

8

occur simultaneously.

9

assessments on January 1st and tax rates on

Maui does not.

It ,sets

10

July 1st, which means there's always this six

11

months of Never Never Land, I guess is the best

12

way to put it.

13

And so we realized that if we were to go

14

and make this Charter amendment effective on

15

November 7th, or a week later or even a month

16

later, that we would totally annihilate the Real

17

Property Tax Division and also the Finance

18

Department.

19

We don't think that they have the

to go and make that kind of change in

20

midstream.

You have just voted on a Budget.

21

You have just voted on what you say the tax

22

rates are.

23

effect until July 1st of 2007.

24

have from November 7th until July 1 of 2007 to,

25

A, redo the assessments, as we will describe in

And so this amendment will not take
And you will
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1

just a moment, and B, to reset the tax rates.

2

Now, we realize that the tax rates that

3

are in existence today may not be the ones that

4

you are going to want to have under a different

5

taxation system.

6

top of page 2, we have done not only a four

7

percent increase maximum for the assessments,

8

but a two percent maximum tax rate -- increase

9

in the tax rate.

10

percent,

11

zero.

12

And so if you'll look on the

It doesn't have to be two

i t could be one percent,

But two percent of what?

i t could be

And since

YOll

13

won't do your assessments and so forth until

14

after the first of the year, we put a sentence

15

in here that says,

16

increased not more than two percent beginning

17

July 1 except that the County Council may, if

18

you wish, increase these rates once prior to

19

May 31st, 2007, which by charter is when you

20

have to have certain other things done.

21

"Except the taxation shall be

So if you want to reset all of these at

22

a beginning point, then it is our objective to

23

give you that opportunity.

24

strangle this -- either the Council,

25

Administration or the County of Maui.

We are not trying to
the
Our
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1

objective is to make tax reform, not tax

2

strangulation, so that's the taxation system.

3

Section 2, page 2.

We need to worry

4

about the term "full cash value."

5

the assessed tax value as of July I, 2004.

6

no mistake that one of the objectives of this is

7

to roll back the assessments to July 1 of 2004.

8

That was supposed to be a two-year rollback.

9

Now that we have it, it is actually a three-year

That means
Make

10

rollback because i t doesn't take effect until

11

2007, as shown on County records or the County

12

Assessor's evaluation of real property if the

13

property was placed on the County records

14

after -- after July I, 2004.

15

new property.

16

In other words,

Thereafter, 100 percent market value,

17

which is what's on the card, shall be the

18

purchase value as stated in the reconveyance or

19

the County Assessor's valuation for newly

20

constructed property which shall be adjusted to

21

the purchase price at the time it is sold.

22

simple straight-forward way of doing this.

23

Refinance

Very

we just wanted to make sure

24

there wasn't a problem with refinancing.

25

refinancing business has gone crazy.

The

So we say,
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1

"However, refinancing of the property where the

2

ownership does not change or changing the

3

ownership by placing the property into a living

4

trust" -- that would be on the broadest idea of

5

expressing that -- "does not cause an adjustment

6

in the assessment."
So if,

7

for instance, Nancy and I were
which we just recently did,

8

going to put our

9

put our property into a living trust,
shape or manner

it would

10

in no way,

and we talked to a

11

couple of attorneys about this and they said

12

this is the way to do it.
"For purposes of this section, newly

13

14

constructed does not include real property that

15

is reconstructed after a disaster,

16

by the Governor, where the fair market value of

17

the real property, as constructed --

18

reconstructed is comparable to its fair market

19

value prior to the disaster."

20

common

21

say in counties -- in places where

22

acquisition value that if your house gets blown

so declared

So a fairly

of language which is widely used to
do

down by a hurricane and you rebuild it, you
24
25

don't get reassessed.
Item B.

That's a reasonable way.

This is an idea that has been
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1

done in other areas.

It is not part of any

2

other legislation we know of.

3

55 years or old who resides in a property that

4

is eligible for Tax Rate 'I, '" which is

5

homeowner,

6

bill to a replacement dwelling of equal or

7

lesser value located in Maui County and

8

purchased or constructed by that person as his

9

or her personal residence within two years of

"Any person

"may transfer their then-current tax

10

the sale of the original property.

11

of this section, any person 55 years or old

12

includes a married c01lple,

13

is 55 years or older.

14

section, a two-dwelling units shall be

15

considered as two separate single-family

16

dwellings."

17

For purposes

one member of which

For purposes of this

The idea here is that somebody has ten
They've had them for years.

Now they

18

children.

19

have this gigantic house.

20

move into a condominium somewhere that has got

21

1800 square feet or something.

22

value of that new property is equal to or less

23

than, they can take their old tax assessment

24

rate, the whole nine yards, with them.

25

a good idea]

As

as the

Is that

Yeah, we think so.
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1

Some explanatory points, Item C, "The

2

full cash value," or the assessment, "shall

3

reflect from year to year a maximum increase or

4

decrease of four percent after July 1, 2004 for

5

any given year for properties purchased before

6

July 1, 2004.

7

the period July

8

shall be increased to the price paid for the

9

property plus four percent annually for those

10

purchased between July 1 and June 30th, 2007.

11

However, any property that is found to be

12

grossly underassessed or has any inequity in

13

assessment, such as misrepresentation as to land

14

use, or is found to be substantially modified

15

without filing of permits or notifications to

16

the Assessor's office may be corrected during

17

the period November 7, 2006 and December 11th

18

31th, 2009."

19

For properties purchased during
30th, 2007, the assessment

If somebody has a

of property that

20

they have said is, quote, farming, agriculture

21

and it is found to be that the person has been

22

misrepresenting that, then that will have a

23

window of opportunity to make sure that they

24

don't ride illegally into a situation where

25

their taxes don't go up, so that's Just to give
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1

a little window of opportunity.
"Such correction is to be made by the

2

3

county Assessor.

That does not change the land

4

use enforcement code, but rather asks that

5

enforcement be increased."

6

take a look and find it out.

7

couple of those recently

8

not want them to get a free ride as a result of

9

this.

In other words, go

wh~re

We have found a
people -- we do

So we give the assessors a couple of

10

years to go and fix that particular problem.

11

Item D at the top of page 3.

"For

12

purposes of this Charter Amendment, newly

13

constructed shall not include any of the

14

following:

15

active solar system.

16

problem that one might have with either the

17

State or the Federal; the construction of any

18

fire sprinkler system, and other fire

19

extinguishing system,

20

fire related improvement that is constructed or

21

installed after the effective date of this

22

paragraphi three,

23

or modification of any portion or structural

24

component of a single or multi-family dwelling

25

that is eligible for the homeowners exemption if

The construction or addition of any
That's to obviate the

fire detection system, or

the construction, installation
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the construction, modification or installation

2

is for the purpose of making the dwelling more

3

accessible to or mores usable by a disabled

4

person."

5

In other words,

if somebody decides they

6

need to go use ramps and all sorts of other

7

things in order to make the place more

8

accessible for a disabled person, let us not

9

repeat not increase the cost to them from an

10
11

12

assessment standpoint.
Then we go on to a little deeper
explanation of the words "change in ownership."

13

"For purposes of this section,

'change

14

in ownership' does not include the acquisition

15

of real property as a replacement of comparable

16

property if the person acquiring the real

17

property has been displaced from the property

18

replaced by eminent domain proceedings,

19

acquisition by a public

20

actions that has resulted in a judgment of

21

inverse condemnation.

22

acquired shall be deemed to be comparable if the

23

property replaced -- to the property replaced if

24

it is similar in size, utility and function or

25

if it conforms to State regulations defined by

or governmental

The real property
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1

the legislature concerning the relocation of

2

persons displaced by government actions."

3

4
5

There are State ordinances which deal
with that subject.
"The provisions of this subdivision

6

shall be applied to any property acquired after

7

July 1, 2004 but shall affect only those

8

assessments of that property that occur after

9

the provisions of this subdivision take effect."

10

F.

"Notwithstanding any other

11

provisions of this section, the County Council

12

shall provide that the tax assessment of that

13

which is substantially damaged or destroyed by a

14

disaster, as declared by the Governor, may be

15

transferred to comparable property within Maui

16

County that is acquired or newly constructed as

17

a replacement for the substantially damaged or

18

destroyed property.

19

damaged or destroyed if it sustains physical

20

damage amounting to more than 50 percent of its

21

value immediately before the disaster.

22

includes a diminution in the value of the

23

property as a result of restricted access caused

24

by the disaster."

25

G.

Property is substantially

Damage

"Replacement property is comparable
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1

to the property substantially damaged or

2

destroyed if it is similar in size, utility and

3

function to the property it replaces and if the

4

fair market value of the acquired property is

5

comparable to the fair market value of the

6

replaced property prior to the disaster."
H.

7

"For purposes of Section I, the

8

terms "changes in ownership" and "purchase

9

price" does not include the purchase or transfer

10

of real property between spouses after July I,

11

2004,

12

following:"

13

14
15

including but not limited to the

This is to take care of some legalese
relative to divorces and stuff.
Transfer, number one, it's top of 4,

16

"Transfers to a trustee for the beneficial use

17

of a spouse or the surviving spouse of a decease

18

transferor, or by a trustee of such trust to the

19

spouse of the trustee.

20

"Transfers to a spouse or former spouse

21

in connection with a property settlement

22

agreement or decree of dissolution of

23

or legal separation.

24
25

"Transfers to a spouse that takes effect
upon the death of a spouse.
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"The creation or transfer or termination

1
2

solely between spouses of any owner's interest.
"The distribution of a legal entity's

3
4

property to a spouse or former spouse in

5

exchange for the interest of the spouse in the

6

legal entity in connection with a property

7

settlement agreement or a decree of dissolution

8

of marriage or legal separation."
This is some legalese in here that takes

9

10

care of the fact that you don't get reassessed

11

just because you give the -- get a divorce, as

12

an example, and the wife gets the house,

13

husband ceases to be on the deed and there is,

14

in fact,

15

and we don't -- that would be an unfair thing to

16

do.

a quote, change in ownership, unquote,

And finally on Section 3,

17

and the

"This Charter

18

Amendment shall be effective upon its approval

19

by the voters of Maui County."
I'm sorry.

20

I missed

I did miss a

21

point.

22

transfer of the principle residence from parents

23

to children or grandchildren," and it's

24

important to note we're talking about principle

25

residence.

The transfer

"The purchase or

If you own a piece of rental
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1

property and you give it to your children, it

2

doesn't apply, but a parent living in a house

3

decides that he is going to give or sell at

4

whatever price that piece of property to either

5

a child or a grandchild, not a cousin, not an

6

uncle, not a next door neighbor, but, in fact,

7

to a child or a grandchild, "may be made without

8

altering the assessment of the real property up

9

to one million dollars.

10

Why do we put that limit in there?

11

Well, if somebody has got a 50 million dollar

12

piece of property, we just don't think that's

13

reasonable, so anything over that would be

14

reassessed -- "of the full cash value of the

15

real property.

16

voluntary transfers and transfers from a court

17

order or judicial decree.

18

become effective on the date that this Charter

19

Amendment becomes effective."

20

This shall apply to both

This measure will

Charter amendment, we already read that,

21

"Presented to the Maui County Council on

22

May 15th," and with slight modifications in

23

June, "for approval of being placed on the

24

November 7, 2006 ballot," per Item 14 1-1 of the

25

present County Charter.

If you're

14-1
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1

Item 1, and what this says is such a petition

2

shall designate and authorize not less than

3

three, nor more than five,

4

thereto to approve any alteration or change in

5

the form or language or any restatement of the

6

text of the proposed amendment which may be made

7

by the Corporation Counsel.

8

designated are Bill Tavares, myself, Robert

9

Jones,

of the signers

The five so

John Blumer-Buell and Morrow Bagda.
The reason is that should Corporation

10
11

Counsel decide let's just take the term that I

12

had at the beginning, which was change in

13

ownership.

14

fact, determine that that needs to be changed to

15

something else for a legal reason -- and we have

16

a bunch of these things all signed -- we don't

17

have to go back and get all of these people to

18

sign again.

19

the five for that matter,

20

legally

21

Corporation Counsel in great detail.

22

and do that without changing the substance of

23

the Charter Amendment, and this is the way the

24

system "'Jorks.

25

If Corporation Counsel should, in

We, the five of us, or any three of
can make such changes

- and we worked this out with
We can go

We think what we have is a marvelous
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1

addition and change to the way that property is

2

assessed and taxed.

3

however, a comment that I made at the very

4

beginning:

All aspects of this document are on

5

the table.

We are collecting signatures.

6

said, we have almost 1,000 signatures.

7

going to have, in our estimation, absolutely no

8

problem in getting the eight or 15,000 required

9

and we will proceed with that.

I would like to reiterate,

As I

We are

But we would hope that the County

10
11

Council will say,

"Gees, you guys with all that

12

gray hair, it would be better if you didn't have

13

to sit in front of Safeway constantly and sign

14

people up."

15

Council would take upon itself the

16

responsibility to say,

17

this, we're not saying we agree with this, what

18

we are doing is to say that the voters of Maui

19

County have the right to go and make this

20

decision themselves."

21

golly, we will not come back and darken your

22

door with this particular thought again, but we

23

think that the voters of Maui County are, in

24

fact,

25

a little while ago about you know, there really

And we would hope that the County

"We're not voting for

And if we lose, then

entitled because there was a comment made
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1

2

isn't any big deal and not ...
Well, let me tell you.

I don't know

3

about your phones, but my phone rings all the

4

time with people saying,

5

in the last two years.

6

the last four years."

7

it and our project is going to become known as

8

CAP, C-A-P, Charter Amendment Petition.

9

fact, we're even talking about buying some caps

10

that say "CAP" on them.

11

good idea.

12

Anyway,

"My taxes have doubled
My taxes have tripled in

We need to put a cap on

In

Seems to me to be a

I sincerely

Bill and I both

13

and all the other members of COMET sincerely

14

appreciate your help and your, you know,

15

understanding and listening to our story,

16

because this, ladies and gentlemen, as Bill

17

opened up with, is a historic moment.

18

big deal and we sincerely hope that you will

19

vote today to go and say,

20

resolution to put back before you where you can

21

then take a vote."

22

way, by charter six to three

or six or more.

23

This is not a simple majority.

We then go out

24

and get ten percent of the signatures and bring

25

us back to you, then it can be a simple five to

This is a

"Let us get a

The vote has to be, by the
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four majority.

1

I want you to think long and hard.

2

We

3

have thought this thing through.

I hope going

4

through this you realize this is not a couple of

5

old jerks who are sitting around coming up with

6

a bunch of stupid ideas.

7

enormous amount of research.

8

hundreds of people both on Maui and off of Maui.

9

I have talked to the people in Oahu who are

We have done an
We have talked to

10

doing a four percent cap by the way also,

11

want you -- we want your cooperation.

and we

You've heard me say this a dozen times.

12

vve' re

13

We're not mad at anybody.

14

anybody.

15

your help and with the Administration's help as

16

well.

17

was about 30 minutes, was it not, Mr. Chairman

18

Kane?

We want to do this cooperatively with

And with that,

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR YeAI'JE:

21

not angry with

I conclude.

I think that

Close.

It's closed.

You started at

you

folks started your opening remarks at ...

22

MR.

FISHER:

23

CHAIR KANE:

Oh, no.
You started your remarks at 2:10 and

24

it's 2:55,

so it was about 45 minutes of a

25

presentation.
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1

MR. FISHER:

The first part was just (inaudible)

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members, the Chair is aware

3

of the time.

4

mid break and then come back and provide

5

opportunity for our Director of Finance as well

6

as our Corporation Counsel Office to provide

7

their remarks and then open it up for Q and A,

8

or we can charge forward.

9

would consider recess at this time so that we

10

We can either take a break

can get fresh

I would ask that you

freshen up.

11

COUNCILMEMBER?:

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Appreciate it.

Okay.

Chair?

Members,

the time now ...

Chair?

Chair?

Yes, Member Anderson.
Thank you.

Before you

17

recess, I would just like to ask one quick

18

question for clarification.

19

On the agenda under status, it says,

20

legislative action will be taken.

21

amendment is required to be in the form of a

22

resolution, but a proposed resolution is not

23

pending before the Committee for appropriate

24

public notice."

25

our

"No

A Charter

And the reason I ask for clarification,
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1

Chair, does that mean that you do not anticipate

2

a vote today?

3

CHAIR KANE:

We do not have a resolution to vote on.

4

A resolution was not drafted and so we provided

5

this meeting as an opportunity for COMET, the

6

Department as well as Corporation Counsel to

7

give us their presentations before this body has

8

an opportunity to decide its direction, so --

9
10

11

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
CHAIR KANE;

Thanks.

we do not have something that we can

vote on today to move this out as an example.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

I just want to make

13

that clear because comments are being made about

14

voting today and I want everyone to know what

15

we're doing.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions or comments before

17
18

Thank you.

we recess?
Hea

19

none, Members, time now is 2:56.

20

VJe will recess until 3:10, 3:10.

21

stands in recess.

22

RECESS:

2:57 p.m.

23

RECONVENE:

3:15 p.m.

24

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

25

Members.

The Committee

(Gavel.)

The committee is reconvened,

We have just concluded the
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1

presentation by both Misters Tavares and Fisher

2

on their presentation.
At this time I'd like to take this

3
4

opportunity to recognize the Director of

5

Finance, Mr. Kalbert Young,

6

remarks,

7

Corporation Counsel for their remarks.

and then we will be yielding to

Mr. Young, good afternoon.

8

9

to provide any

MR. YOUNG:

Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and Members.

10

My cormnents will be brief in anticipation of the

11

questions and answer period.

12

The Acimini,st ration is always

is

13

already on record with the earlier version of

14

this amendment.

15

proposed, is different from the ordinances as

16

contemplated by this committee earlier.

17

This Charter amendment, as

In my opinion, the structure of the

18

proposal seems more appropriate to that of an

19

ordinance revision rather than that of a Charter

20

amendment, but there are

21

of workable components in the proposal that the

22

Department of Finance finds quite tenable and

23

interesting to the point where we are all

24

every citizen is interested in paying less

25

taxes, myself included, and saw -- and looked at

there are a number
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1

in a vacuum, reduction in real property taxes is

2

a good thing.

3

However,

from a financial perspective,

4

everyone here, all the committee members, I'm

5

sure, are keenly aware of the difficulties of

6

balancing a County Budget and the requirements

7

of the populace's desires with the limited

8

prospects of real property tax.

9

For the last three years, at least, we

10

have seen a real property tax revenue increase

11

due to rapid property tax assessed values.

12

We've also seen reductions in the real property

13

tax rate and yet this Council has always

14

struggled with being able to fund all of the

15

projects that the public has desired, and the

16

Fiscal Year '07 Budget is no different.

17

We have seen the Budget and the County

18

government increase at rates far in excess of

19

CPI or four percent.

20

represents upwards of 40 percent of all the

21

revenue that the County generates.

22

feels that future Councils and the present can

23

balance future budgets and County government

24

operations by limiting the most sizable portion

25

of its revenue base, then I feel that the voters

Real property tax

If this body
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1

should be given the opportunity to be educated

2

on this item and have that opportunity to vote,

3

that they would like to see the balance of their

4

future budgets and county operations relative to

5

their decision in Election 2006.
In my previous evaluation submitted to

6

7

your office, Mr. Chair, and to this body, I had

8

evaluated the proposal as submitted under ,the

9

ordinance revision.

I've been unable to

10

determine that this proposal will result in

11

added revenue to the County.
It is true that on an individual basis

12

13

we will probably see taxpayers who are in a

14

large part of the personal scenarios would

15

probably see a reduction in taxes, but the

16

coupling effect of a tax on future revenue

17

streams could be devastating for the County

18

financial operations.

19

I'll reserve the rest of my comments for

20

any questions or answers of the Members and turn

21

it over to the Corporation Counsel at your

22

discretion, Mr. Chair.

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Young.
Mr. Moto and/or Ms. Fujita-Villarosa,

are there any comments from your office at this
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1

2

time?
MR. MOTO:

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Members

3

of the Committee.

4

into three general topic areas:

5

Our remarks are going to fall

The first is our comments that relate to

6

whether amending the charter for tax reform

7

measures is an appropriate use of the Charter

8

amendment process.

I'll address that issue.

9

Secondly, some drafting and technical

10

observations about the proposal that has been

11

submitted and is on today's agenda.

12

And the third part of our comments will

13

relate to information and comments that we have

14

received from Bond Counsel -- some general

15

observations made by Bond Counsel on the tax

16

reform proposal.

17

areas in mind, I'll begin with the first one.

18

When people first approached me about

So with those three topic

19

the possibility of tax reform measures, one

20

question that I was asked informally was what

21

did I think about the County Charter and would

22

it permit people to initiate an amendment to the

23

charter in order to limit real property taxes.

24

And it's, as far as I can tell, a question of

25

first impression because I'm not sure there has
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1

ever been -- at least there has never been a

2

successful proposal to limit taxes in that way.
And the position I

3

took and still take

4

is that yes, it is permissible, but having said

5

that, I must make a disclosure to you, which is

6

that on the island of Kauai, the County of

7

Kauai

8

these facts,

9

put on the Kauai County ballot to amend the

and some of you may already be aware of
the -- there was a measure that was

10

Kauai county Charter and to provide for a

11

limitation on taxes.

12

Essentially.

that measure was an

13

amendment to an article of the Kauai County

14

Charter, and basically what it did, as I

15

understand it, and to be -- to simplify things

16

here is it says for County residents, it limited

17

the amount of real property taxes paid to a base

18

year that was specified in the Charter amendment

19

1998 to 1999 base year.

20

be rolled back to that fiscal year and

21

thereafter increases were sort of limited to two

22

percent.

23

Taxes were supposed to

That Charter amendment proposal was

24

voted upon by the Kauai voters in the 2004

25

election and then a lawsuit was filed by the
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1

Kauai County.

2

the position in Circuit Court -- Judge Masuoka

3

presiding.

4

Kauai County Attorney's Office took the position

5

that the Charter amendment that had been

6

initiated was invalid.

7

The Kauai County Attorney took

Judge Masuoka is on Kauai.

The

And it's important to note that because

8

the Kauai County Charter and the Maui County

9

Charter, although they're not identical, when it

10

comes to the provisions like initiative and

11

Charter amendments,

12

they're similar in the sense that like Maui.

13

Kauai has a Charter amendment that tells you how

14

to go through the initiative process to propose

15

ordinances and that section says you can have

16

initiative for ordinances but you cannot have

17

do it with regard to any ordinance authorizing

18

or repealing the levy of taxes.

19

that in their Charter and in the Kauai County

20

Charter, they also have a separate Charter

21

amendment provision.

22

they're similar.

And

So they have

Now, the Kauai County Attorney basically

23

argued successfully because a judgment was

24

entered in favor of the Kauai County and the

25

Charter Amendment was struck.

Basically, the
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1

Kauai County Attorney argued that the Charter

2

amendment proposal was invalid even though

3

adopted by the voters because -- on two grounds,

4

that it violated the State Constitution and as

5

interpreted by the judge and by the Kauai County

6

Attorney,

7

Constitution as saying well,

8

real property tax measures ought to be approved

9

by County Councils and not directly by voters.

they interpreted the State
that really the

10

The particular section that they cited of the

11

Hawaii State Constitution was Article 8

12

Section 3, which basically says that "The taxing

13

power shall be reserved to the State except so

14

much thereof as may be delegated by the

15

legislature to the political subdivisions," and

16

then it goes on to say,

17

the taxation of real property shall be exercised

18

exclusively by the Counties."

19

"and duties relating to

So reading that State Constitution

20

provision, Judge Masuoka, agreeing with the

21

Kauai County Attorney said,

22

that the Charter amendment violated the State

23

Constitutional provision here," because they

24

interpreted this

25

to you to mean that it has to be approved by the

HUh-huh,

yes,

the section that I

I

find

just read
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1

County Councils.

2

In 95 percent of all opinions and cases,

3

usually County attorneys tend to agree with each

4

other.

5

because, although we're not parties obviously to

6

the Kauai litigation, that litigation has no

7

direct effect on us, I don't provide legal

8

advice to the Kauai County, but just reading the

9

legal arguments and the decision made by the

This is one rare instance where we don't

10

Circuit Court,

11

that I would concur in the decision that was

12

made.

13

convincing, at least on that point there.

14

I

I,

in all honesty,

cannot say

just don't find the arguments

The second ground on which Judge Masuoka

15

struck down the Kauai Charter Amendment was

16

basically Kauai County argued that

17

"Look, you cannot do -- you cannot do a run

18

around County Charter provisions.

19

County argued that because there was in the

20

Kauai County Charter a provision that says you

21

cannot propose ordinances through the initiative

22

process that relate to real property taxes, that

23

means that you cannot also amend the charter to,

24

in effect, accomplish the same thing.

25

cannot amend the charter to accomplish something

said,

The Kauai

You

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofe: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

75
BF 6/20/06

1

that you could not do through the initiative

2

process by ordinance.

3

Now, there's nothing in the Kauai County

4

Charter that explicitly says that.

5

something they inferred but here again Judge

6

Masuoka agreed with the Kauai County Attorney,

7

and so on that ground also the law was found

8

the Charter amendment was deemed invalid.

9

It was again

On this point here again, I have to

10

be -- my reading it,

11

find -- I still don't find that line of

12

reasoning to be all that convincing.

13

that the parties to that litigation, Kauai

14

County and the taxpayers who are involved, are

15

now before the Hawaii Supreme Court appealing

16

the decision, so regardless of whether I'm right

17

or not or whether Kauai County is right or not,

18

eventually there should be a Supreme Court

19

decision that helps decide that issue.

20

I

have to say I don't

I will say

And even though that decision relates to

21

Kauai election and Kauai law there, probably is

22

going to be some law -- new law made in that

23

decision or some exposition of law that will be

24

informative for our purposes because our

25

charters are quite similar.
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Unfortunately, the Supreme Court tends

1

2

to take a long time in rendering these

3

decisions.

4

about six months.

5

they took two years or more to get a decision,

6

so there is that gray area.

7

for you.

8

say that there was that decision -- Kauai County

9

Circuit Court decision made.

I think they've had the case now for
It wouldn't surprise me if

I cannot resolve it

I can just be up front with you and

I have not issued

10

an opinion that's the same as that or congruent

11

with that because I frankly don't share that

12

basic judgment, but we'll find out who's right

13

when the Supreme Court decides.
If I may,

14

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

MR. MOTO:

I can now

Proceed.
-- move on to the second part of my

17

comments, and these relate to some general

18

observations about the draft proposal submitted
There's some introductory things I

19

COMET.

20

want to say.

21

people

22

know, Corporation Counsel did not write the

23

proposal.

24

research or drafting and, therefore, it does not

25

necessarily reflect our position or input, et

For the record, it's important to

for people to understand that, you

We did not participate in its
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1
2

cetera.

And that's important to understand.
I will make the general observation that

3

in its format and length, it looks more like an

4

ordinance.

5

amendments that are lengthy, although there is

6

nothing to prohibit or bar a lengthy Charter

7

amendment, per se.

8
9

It's pretty unusual to have Charter

As I understand it -- and I have to be
honest with you, I don't think I personally
It's

10

understand all aspects of the proposal.

11

not that -- for my purposes,

12

that easy to understand certain parts, but from

13

what I can see, it does contain multiple

14

actually multiple tax reform measures in it,

15

substantive measures, so that's important to

16

note because it's not just one -- one

l7

substantive idea, it actually has many

18

substantive proposals incorporated in it; each

19

one of which would be of fair significance in

20

and of itself.

21

For example

I don't find it all

and these were noted

22

already in the earlier summary, there are --

23

there's the fact that the proposal would roll

24

back assessments to a certain base year, and

25

that there would be a limit on the annual
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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It would have

1

percent increase in assessments.

2

reassessments occur whenever there is a change

3

in ownership, and it would have these

4

reassessments occur actually much more promptly

5

after a change in ownership than they are now.
There's a separate provision which would

6
7

limit the tax rates.

8

is a significant proposal.
There's a limit on the percentage

9

10

That by itself, of course,

increase that can occur on tax rates.

There's a special provision for people

11

12

who are 55 years and older that's -- who are

13

getting a new so-called replacement dwelling and

14

the rollover of the tax assessment, as I

15

understand it -- or tax bill to that replacement

16

dwelling.
And there are other substantive

17

18

provisions, each one of which is new in the

19

sense that it would change the current law

20

definition such as what newly constructed mean,

21

special provisions regarding, what happens when

22

property is refinanced, and also special

23

provisions regarding the transfer of property

24

from

25

grandchild or child.

within families from a parent to a
So I'll make that
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1

observation.

2

At this point perhaps I will just move

3

on then to the third main area of my comments.

4

And we do want to just summarize for your

5

purposes the comments and information that we

6

received from our Bond Counsel, Sean Tierney.

7

He's an attorney with Hawkins Delafield.
Mr. Tierney was provided with a cqpy of

8
9

the proposed Charter amendment.

He was not --

10

he didn't have a whole a lot of time to review

11

it, a couple of days, and we just spoke with him

12

by telephone this morning.
I'll summarize his comments as

13

and by the way,

I will note if at any

14

follows

15

time this committee or any other committee would

16

like to speak directly with Bond Counsel and

17

pose questions to Bond Counsel, that's something

18

that we can arrange.

19

According to Bond Counsel, he -- his

20

comments are that the tax reform proposal will

21

significantly reduce, in his opinion, County's

22

debt capacity; in other words,

23

borrow, and actually could ironically add to

24

County's need for additional debt because it

25

possibly would reduce the cash reserves over

its ability to
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1

time for the County.
Another observation he made was that it

2
3

could increase the cost of borrowing if the

4

County -- the County bond rating were negatively

5

impacted.

6

higher the interest rate.

The lower one's bond rating, the

We also discussed with Bond Counsel a

7

8

particular section in the Hawaii Revised

9

Statutes Section 47-12.

Section 47-12 of the

10

Hawaii Revised Statutes is part of a chapter

11

dealing with County bonds.

12

that authorizes counties to issue tax exempt

13

municipal bonds, and 47-12 is a section that's

14

subheaded,

15

Unlimited Taxation to Pay Principle and

16

Interest."

It's that chapter

"Pledge of Full Faith and Credit,

And the reason why we discussed this

17
18

measure is because it does

19

regarding

20

the effect of those bonds.

21

faith and credit of the County shall be pledged

22

to the payment of the principal of and interest

23

on the bonds issued by the County under this

24

chapter whether or not the pledge is stated in

25

the bonds.

's bond issuance
It says,

and
"The full

For the payment of the principal and
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1

interest, the governing body," meaning the

2

Council -- "the governing body shall levy

3

ad valorem taxes without limitation as to rate

4

or amount on all the real property subject to

5

taxation by the County."

6

paragraph of that section.

That's the first

7

We asked Bond Counsel about how a tax

8

reform measure like this would relate to this

9

particular section.

We were concerned as to

10

whether there might be a conflict.

11

said that quite frankly that it was an issue of

12

first impression.

13

clear how this section would be interpreted or

14

applied to counties that adopted tax limitation

15

or tax reform measures.

16

Bond Counsel

There's -- it is not entirely

Generally speaking, he said that bond

17

holders, existing bond holders, people who have

18

purchased and invested in County municipal

19

County bonds, tax-exempt bonds, do look towards

20

the County for payment of principal and interest

21

and that that -- and that they will look to the

22

County to live up to that pledge regardless of

23

the financial situation of the County.

24

County must make its principal and interest

25

payments.

The
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The analysis of how a particular tax

1

2

reform measure might affect bond holders depends

3

on -- the analysis will depend on whether one is

4

looking at existing bond holders or future bond

5

holders.

6

bond holders are relatively rare.

7

normally have need or desire to sue municipal

8

bond issuers unless

9

the issuer is taking measures that either

Bond Counsel did say that lawsuits by
They don't

unless they perceive that

10

endanger their financial interest or indicate

11

that the municipality is about to default or

12

does any action that might devalue the bonds

13

that have already been issued.

14

It is theoretically possible, although

15

I'm not saying it's likely, but it is

16

theoretically possible so it's something that

17

I'm going to disclose to you that a municipal

18

bond holder might say,

19

County of Maui adopts Charter amendments that

20

limit its abi

21

as to -- you know,

22

amount in order to pay bonds, then County may be

23

in conflict with 47-12 of the Hawaii Revised

24

Statutes or with the terms of the bond

25

indenture, and in other words, the contract that

",",lell, to the extent the

to raise moneys as necessary
raise taxes as to rate or
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1

was entered into between the bond holder and the

2

issuer when the bonds were purchased.

3

Bond Counsel's more general observation

4

was that he really thinks it's going to be more

5

an issue of credit

6

credibility, that the real impact to County is

7

less likely to be lawsuits than a general

8

perception by borrowers that County of Maui, to

9

the extent it adopts tax limitation measures,

credit worthiness and

10

will have to be scrutinized in order to measure

11

its true ability and willingness to pay and to

12-

generate revenues to ensure payment of any debt

13

incurred.
That concludes my comments.

14
15

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Moto.
Members, you've heard the three

16
17

presentations from COMET -- from the Director of

18

Finance as well as Corporation Counsel.

19

Chair will now open it up for questions and I'll

20

start with Member Tavares and I'll come back

21

around this way, so Member Tavares, you have the

22

floor.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

Your

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Mr. Moto, in our current charter,
Section 3-6 and the Powers of the Council, the
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1

first power of the Council is "to legislate

2

taxes, rates,

3

assessments and to borrow money subject to the

4

limitations provided by law in this charter."

fees,

assessments and special

So if this Charter amendment were to be

5

would that, would we not have to

6

proposed and

7

have an accompanying Charter amendment that

8

changes this number one, the power to legislate

9

tax, rates and fees, assessments?

10

MR. MOTa;

Mr. Chairman,

i t depends on how one reads

Number one,

I'm

11

and interprets that sentence.

12

looking at page 7, top of the page under Powers

13

of Council.

14

this office would say is that that

15

sentence, "To legislate taxes,

16

assessments and special assessments" is a

17

general grant of authority to the Council to

18

adopt ordinances on taxes, et cetera, but it

19

does not necessarily

20

the charter on the subject of taxation.

21

other words, it's not -- the power to legislate

22

is not necessarily exclusive in the sense of

23

prohibiting, therefore, charter provisions

24

relating to taxes.

25

I think what we would say

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

or
that

rates, fees,

ude the amendment of

Okay.
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1

MR. MOTO:

Now, again I have to say that if you

if

2

you, on the other hand, agree with Judge Masuoka

3

on Kauai County and the Kauai County Attorney,

4

then you would disagree with me.

5

"No, this is not a valid subject for Charter

6

amendments and it doesn't belong there and it's

7

illegal."

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

You would say,

My other question is

you alluded to the entire proposal as looking

10

more like an ordinance than a Charter amendment.

11

Is there not a way that some part of it becomes

12

a Charter amendment and then there is an

13

ordinance that would be enabling legislation

14

following a Charter amendment and that's where

15

some of the details would fall?

16

MR. MOTO:

Yes.

Mr. Chairman, typically

and this

l7

is regarding any Charter amendment.

18

Charter amendments generally are fairly

19

succinct.

Ire short.

20

particular

ect matter and then the details,

21

et cetera, are expected to be worked out through

22

legislation adopted by the County Councilor

23

administrative rules or both, and that is

24

certainly something that could be done.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Usually

They deal with a

Thank you.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

2

Ms. Anderson, questions at this time?

3

I stated that we're going to come

4

around, Ms. Anderson, and I just ask again for a

5

common courtesy.

6

Mr. Pontanil1a, because I saw people raising

7

their hand so I wanted to recognize people as

8

much as possible in the order that they raised

9

their hands, but I just asked for the common

10

courtesy and I'm sure all Members have their

11

opportunity so that we yield the floor to

12

provide other Members their opportunity.

Member Anderson?

13

14
15

I'm sorry, I stated earlier,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

I'm sorry, Chair.

thought we were going this way.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

Again,

This way.

I'm trying to recognize the

19

people who raised their hands, sc I tried to

20

catch that and then use the trend to go and

21

recognize those people.

22

I

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm sure everybody has

23

questions so I'll try to be short and sweet,

24

Mr. Chair.

25

know, Mr. Moto, you said that Bond Counsel said

I have a lot of questions but
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this Charter amendment could

1

that it could

2

increase the cost of borrowing because it could

3

reduce the County's bond rating.

4

do that?

5

just ...

6

MR. MOTO:

How could it

I mean I need more substantiation than

Yeah, well, you know, if

if you'd like

7

more information, I think probably best pose the

8

question to Bond Counsel.
From previous discussions with this Bond

9
10

Counsel and other Bond Counsels and with

11

investment bankers,

12

to say is something like that the credit rating

13

for a County is like evaluating the FICO score

14

for an individual borrower.

15

know, character capacity, credit worthiness --

16

worthiness, et cetera.

17

that they always look at is income, what is

18

your

19

there

20

your potential earning and revenue ability?

21

22
23
24
25

I think what they're likely

You look at, you

And one of the things

what is your revenue potential and is
are there any facts or limitations on

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And you just gave him the

proposed charter ordinance or ...
MR. MOTO:

COMET's proposal, yes, we did give him a

copy.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So I guess he's
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1

making assumptions based on that to make his

2

opinion?

3
4

MR. MOTO:

Yes.

All I can say is that's what he told

us --

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MR. MOTO:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

you know.
I appreciate that but I

8

would want to know what he based it on in order

9

to have any, you know, sense of accuracy in his

10

assessment.

11

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Chair, may I

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

MR. YOUNG:

just add?

Mr. Young?
Ms. Anderson, perhaps I can provide a

14

little bit more insight.

15

from Bond Counsel stems from how the credit

16

rating agencies perform their review in order to

17

determine what the County's credit rating will

18

be.

19

think everybody is familiar with the AAA bonds,

20

double A bonds,

21

This is exactly what he's talking about.

22

I think this reference

And more commonly this is referred to -- I

junk bond status, et cetera.

When the County goes to issue its bonds,

23

it will do a presentation to these various

24

credit rating agencies -

25

that the County hits when we do these bonds.

there's three of them
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1

And at that time we present everything, the

2

financial status of the County, the expectations

3

for expenses, the expectation for revenue

4

growth, and then we must disclose any

5

limitations or any issues that may affect those

6

expectations.
The credit rating agencies, because they

7

8

are independent, they will review all of this

9

information and come to some assessment in terms

10

of what they feel is the adequate rating to

11

bestow upon the County.

12

affects the market where buyers of our bonds

13

will judge how much they are willing to payor

14

how much interest will be deserving based on

15

what our ratings are.

16

And that, in turn,

Currently, the County of Maui has

17

somewhere in the neighborhood of a double A

18

rating.

19

quite enviable for other muni

20

country and as well as other counties in the

21

State of Hawaii.

22

It's not the highest rating, but it's
in the

The reference from Bond Counsel is

23

relevant because the County of Kauai did go and

24

seek the issuance of bonds after they had

25

already received by initiative vote the results
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524 2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

90
BF 6/20/06

1

of the item that Mr. Moto was referencing.

And

2

at the time that they did go to seek the

3

ratings, the credit rating agencies were very,

4

I'll say, interested.

5

in terms of the effect that amendment would have

6

on that County's future revenue stream and it

7

did

8

of the County of Kauai to secure -- well, one,

9

to preserve their credit rating, but, you know,

They were very interested

it did take a lot more work on the part

10

the County of Kauai did receive,

in fact,

an

11

upgrade for their credit rating even though this

12

item was passed by the voters.
So it's not necessarily that -- you

13

14

know, that an item like this will mean a credit

15

decline, it is -- it is, in fact,

16

likelihood that needs to be addressed should the

17

County of Maui face the same aspect as the

18

County of Kauai.

19

conclusion.

20

cannot state as a certainty that it would

21

happen.

22

issue that the credit rating agencies do look

23

very seriously at and they don't look i t

24

seriously

25

positive so it takes a lot of work on the part

--

So it's not a foregone

I think that's

It isn't

a big

-

Bond Counsel

just know that it is an

their initial look at i t is not
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1

of the County to preserve those interests.
The other mitigating points for the

2

3

Kauai -- why they were able to secure an upgrade

4

is not because of this measure, but also because

5

of the revenue prospects in their tourism market

6

as well as for the strong future growth in the

7

state of Hawaii, as well as some of their

8

business prospects overcame a lot of those

9

issues, so the County of Kauai was able to

10

secure an upgrade.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you for that,

12

Mr. Young,

13

because all you have to do is look at the

14

development projects that are on the books for

15

Maui that have not yet come on board yet, and I

16

think it would be hard for anyone to say that

17

our revenue stream is being limited by this.

18

have multi-million dollar projects that have

19

been approved and have not yet been built and

20

that will be coming online,

21

next 20 years, and that will be the increase of

22

our -- in our revenue stream.

23

increase in our revenue stream, so I

24

that.

25

I

and for being honest about that

\tiJe

you know, over the

That's an assured
appreciate

have some questions for the COMET

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

92
BF 6/20/06

1

folks, Mr. Chair.

2

about the possibility that this will hurt first

3

time home buyers and I'm having a hard time

4

seeing that because, you know, when you buy your

5

house, you pay the assessed valuation the first

6

time it comes

7

see how this is going to be make it any

8

different.

9

MR. FISHER:

You know, there's been talk

the tax bill comes in.

I don't

Could you address that, Mr. Fisher?

Well, I guess I have two comments to

10

make about that.

11

according to what the County sends out to

12

people, and I

13

estimate of the full market value, and,

14

therefore, if somebody is, in fact, buying a

15

house at a particular price, that is the full

16

market value because full market value means

17

what you pay for it and so it absolutely adheres

18

to what this says.

19

it certainly is consistent with that.

20

The first thing is that

read this earlier, that this is an

And if that's the case, then

Now, as to relative to the first time

21

or the younger

or the home buyer,

22

the

place that I have some real experience

23

in was a lot of years ago in the State of

24

California.

25

has been the greatest stimulant, stimulant to

And all I can tell you is that it
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1

young buyers that you can possibly imagine,

2

because young buyers have one thing in mind and

3

that's called a budget.

4

concerned about how much their taxes are going

5

to go up year to year to year to year to year,

6

not, you know, doubling and tripling in three or

7

four years drives the new home buyer out of his

8

house.

9

They are much more

This says you can stabilize the growth.
People go to work and they get raises on

10

annual basis,

11

County Council, not necessarily annual but on a

12

regular basis, and you budget your life,

13

will, based upon those kind of things happening.

14

And if, in fact,

15

what we have right now,

16

then the new home buyer sits there saying,

17

can't afford it.

18

today but when my taxes double and triple and

19
20
21

including the Members of the

if you

you have instability, which is

I

enormous instability,

"I

may be able to afford it

over the next few years,

I

may be

taxed out of my home and I'm only 29 years old.

n

I gave to the County Council some time

22

ago a letter from the friend of mine whom I have

23

known for a lot of years who bought his first

24

home at the age of 24, and that letter

25

specifically says,

"Thank heavens for what they
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1

did in California because I am able to live and

2

have all of the issues

3

my life because of the stability."

4

lived there ever since in that house.

the positive issues of
And he's

5

Now, personally, I think that to adhere

6

to what this says, which is I'm paying the full

7

market value, which is what we're supposed to be

8

doing anyway, which we're not right now

9

present system does not have the full market

the

10

value,

11

benefit to the new home buyer.

12

call a myth.

13

absolutely incorrect statement and the only

14

state that I know of -- now,

15

lot of other states that have acquisition-based

16

taxes in them, the only one that I know of is

17

California and California is ecstatic about it.

18

I mean they

19

and then limiting that is an enormous

This is what we

This is a smoke screen.

It is an

I know there are a

it's wonderful.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I appreciate that,

20

Mr. Fisher, because rather than hurting the

21

first time home buyer, it's actually going to

22

help them, as you said, in stabili

23

expected of them and their payments over the

24

years and hopefully keep them in their home.

25

I'd also like to know if

what's

how this
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1

proposal -- and we've heard this, this is

2

another maybe myth, that this will reduce the

3

revenue to the County.

4

MR. FISHER:

Wonderful question.

The truth of the

5

matter is -- and it was commented on a few

6

moments ago -- that we were limiting this to

7

four percent.

8

amendment as written, and as you all have a copy

9

of, says the assessments will be increased a

That's absolutely untrue.

10

maximum of four percent.

11

increased a maximum of two percent.

12

and two is six, so it's not four.

13

The

The tax rate will be

Now,

four

In addition to that, all property

14

reassessed from whatever its assessed value is

15

to what its purchase price is has in California,

16

Massachusetts and a couple, three other places

17

average between three and six percent per year.

18

So let's take the minimum.

19

So four plus two plus three is nine, and I would

20

make this comment to the County of Maui and I

21

I like what Corporation Counsel said that if

22

this County cannot run on nine percent per

23

year

24

twenty years, do you know what the number is?

25

Six.

It's three percent.

by the way, if you look at the last

It's been running for six.

We're not
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1

going to increase it to nine.

2

to nine, does this mean that the present system

3

doesn't have its 22 percent, I think it is, this

4

year?

5

that's terrible.

6

are hurting because their taxes went up that

7

much, particularly the renter because he's the

8

guy that got hit, as one of the testifiers, had

9

today.

10

Yeah.

If we go from six

I think that's a shame.

I think

I know a lot of people that

If the County of Maui cannot run on nine

11

percent per year, then something is terribly

12

wrong, terribly wrong.

13

50 percent more than what it has averaged.

14

And that is -- that is

Now, again, the County does not have to

15

go up nine percent.

16

by both the Finance Department and by

17

Corporation Counsel, we are not limiting

18

anything.

19

The comments that were made

California, for instance, says it goes

20

up two percent per year, period, end of

21

discussion.

22

left the -- the tax rate, as an example, it can

23

be zero, half percent, one percent, one and a

24

half, two, whatever you guys want to go and make
that happen.

There is no anybody has any.

It doesn't have to go up two
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1

percent if there is no reason.

In other words,

2

there is a lots of real estate sold and you've

3

got an enormous influx of money, which by the

4

way will tax the speculators or at least the

5

people who have gone out and acquired these

6

problems

7

then wonderful, you don't have to raise the tax

8

rate.

9

Not two, not four percent, it's nine percent.

these properties at expanded prices,

But the number is nine percent, got it?

10

And that's a very important distinction over

11

what -- what has been proposed.
This is not something we pulled out of

12

13

the air.

14

at what the County had done in the last 20 years

15

and these numbers are real.

16

your question?

17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

We looked very carefully.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

We looked

Does that answer

Very well.

Thank

you.
CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Jmderson, if we can allow other

Members?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yes,

I'm finished,

Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.
Ms. Johnson?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

1 really appreciate you
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1

taking the time to just go through this because

2

I think the general public really benefits when

3

they understand,

4

and, of course, what you have been fighting for

5

all these years.

you know, what we're up against

6

My question basically has to do with a

7

comment that was made with regard to the Kauai

8

case where somehow -- and I guess the bond

9

comments too,

I noticed that in the proposal,

10

the way you have i t established,

11

rate with

12

rates are laid out.

13

way we do our budgeting right now annually the

14

Council sets the rate.

15

generally.

16

And that,

17

limiting factor.

18

circumstances that would,

19

that rate that's stated in the charter the way

20

that you have it proposed, if there were some

21

set of circumstances that necessitated that that

22

rate be changed, do you believe that you could

23

integrate some kind of language that would at

24

least allow that?

25

a range within which the Council could establish

there is a set rate,

there is a set

you know, the

If -- let's say because the

It's in a range

There's a high and there's a low.
I guess, in and of itself is a
If there were, let's say,
I guess, necessitate

You know, either that or set
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1

every year through the Budg~t process a fixed

2

amount?

3

MR. FISHER:

It's an interesting question.

We tried

4

to take care of that in two ways.

The first way

5

was that we drafted language, which is, by the

6

way, not in your present charter which says that

7

if you have a statewide disaster so declared by

8

the Governor, such as Katrina did in the state

9

of Louisiana, then all bets are off and she can

10

do and you can do and the County can do things

11

entirely different insofar as replacing a

12

property.

We very carefully put that in there.

The range of rates, gee, I don't have

13

14

any

15

to be from here to here and here to here, that

16

that is a terrible thing.

17

today by telling everyone here everything is on

18

the table.

19

And therefore, if this group ...

20

big problem with saying if you want

I opened my comments

We are not my way or the highway.

Remember now, our original proposal to

21

this group was to do this through the ordinance

22

process and we had

23

allowed the County Council to set the tax rates.

24

That was the proposal.

25

better way to do it from a Charter amendment

we set the assessments and

We feel that this is a
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1

standpoint.

You say why?

Gee, it would take

2

two hours to go explain all the idiosyncrasies

3

of that because we have thought about that

4

enormously.
As you all know, COMET and this body

5
6

here get along real well.

7

Kauai was, as an example where they were in

8

first fights and court and all that kind

9

thing.

10

We are not in the way

~f

Any reasonable suggestion that seems to

make fence

makes --

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

12

MR. FISHER:

Sense.

-- sense to all of us is on the table

13

and any reasonable suggestion will be considered

14

and we would be willing to do it.

15

Now, remember, we are already collecting

16

signatures but we very carefully, at the advice

17

of a couple of people both in the government

18

here and outside, put in there that we could

19

make such changes on the fly after the fact

20

the five people that have been so designated.

21

And the County Charter

22

does that fairly state that particular part of

23

this, that if we want to make a change of --

24

say, we make it from two percent to two to three

25

percent, that the people that are so designated

fical

Mr. Moto,
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1

in the back of this?

That's the way that I read

2

it and I think that's ...

3

It does not state the degree of how

4

substantial this has to be, so I think that

5

that's a reasonable thing.

6

think the answer to that is undoubtedly yeah, as

7

long as it doesn't say we're going to go through

8

it 16 other ways.

And we -- and I

I'd like to make one other comment while

9

10

I've got a chance.

The term "ad valorem" has

11

been used a couple times as though this is not

12

ad valorem.

13

the value, and to the value is what that card

14

says.

Our proposal

ad valorem means to

Right now, I know people have specific

15
16

definitions of that, but the general definition

17

is that as far as the State government

18

Corporation Counsel is

19

ad valorem just not in the way that this County

20

has done it before.

21

the property.

that this is at quote,

And it is to the value of

But again, this is for lawyers to argue

22
23

out and I'm not one of them.

I'm a

I'm just

24

a senior citizen trying to go and get tax

25

reform.

Does that answer your question?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I appreciate that.

I think

2

that that helps me because then that may be one

3

of the mechanisms whereby we could address some

4

of the issues with regard to the Bond Counsel

5

and the ability of the Council to actually

6

establish either through ordinance on an annual

7

basis within a -- within a range.

8

personally feel that this does -- you know,

9

contrary to what some others had mentioned, I

And I

10

think i t brings a little bit more stability

11

because there is also -- in addition to a rise,

12

there's also the cap that goes downward.

13

right now if there's a total melt down in our

14

real estate market, we don't have that

15

protection currently.

16
17

18

19

MR. FISHER:

And

And that has happened before in the

County of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
appreciate your

So I just

I really

Thank you very much.

20

MR. FISHER:

The main point is

21

CHAIE KANE:

Excuse me, Mr. Fisher.

22

ME. FISHEE:

23

CHAIE KANE:

the number is not -Excuse me, Mr. Fisher.

I'm sorry.

24

we can just restrict your comments to the

25

questions that are posed, that would help us
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1

providing all the Members their opportunity.

2

MR. FISHER:

Yeah.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo?

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

The question will be with Mr. Moto.

6

In

7

your discussion with the Bond Counsel reviewing

8

the proposal, was there anything that

9

was potentially workable or was there anything

the~

saw

10

positive that the Bond Counsel responded to you,

11

or was it all just bad news?

12

MR. MOTO:

Let me,

first of all, say that in the

13

telephone conference that we -- it was by

14

telephone so it was not a face-to-face meeting,

15

and the meeting was not -- we didn't have time

16

to go -- spend a lot of time going line by line

17

over the bill -- or the Charter amendment.

18

He did say that, you know, one of the

19

issues I raised was this provision in the Hawaii

20

Revised Statutes about imposing taxes without

21

limitation as to rate or amount.

22

perhaps one way to eliminate the possibility of

23

there being deemed a conflict between the tax

24

reform measure and this statute, that if there

25

could -- if the measure could somehow have a

He said that
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1

provision that ensured that principle and

2

interest payments on bonds would be paid

3

regardless of this limitation; in other words,

4

carving out on exception for it.

5

provide any particular language or mechanism to

6

do that, he just mentioned it as a concept.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

And a question to Mr. Young.

8
9

But he didn't

letter to Chairman Kane regarding,

Your

I guess,

10

feedback on the initial proposal that was

11

submitted by comment, was that -- have you had

12

the chance to see their revised proposal and

13

whether there was significant change in that

14

revised proposal that you perhaps had not looked

15

at on your original review of what was submitted

16

originally that would have changed any of your

17

positions in your comments to us?

18

MR. YOUNG:

I believe I've seen all of the proposals

19

that this committee has received over the course

20

of the last 12 to 14 months on this issue, and

21

there wasn't anything that I would say that I

22

reclassified my response.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

So to COMET then,

24

when you submitted a revised

so your revised

25

submission, what was the difference between that
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1

2

revised versus what was originally submitted?
MR. FISHER:

Well, one of the major ones was in a

3

discussion that we had with Finance and with

4

Councilmember Kane and a bunch of other people

5

in a room, it was brought up that they could

6

not -

7

period of time because they didn't have the

8

data, so we put in that paragraph -- second

9

paragraph down specifically that the people that

repeat, could not do things in a certain

10

were changing hands -- that were doing the

11

changing hands of real estate, that is the

12

escrow companies and so forth, directly notify

13

the Real Property Tax Department, which is not

14

being done now.

15

enough, but just not by everybody, so we

16

codified it.

17

so they can have some information.

18

It is being done, interestingly

We said you've got to do this now

To us, that was a major change.

I would

19

have thought that would have been a major change

20

to the Finance Department and obviously,

21

therefore, to the Real Property Tax Department

22

because, again, the people we talked to were

23

from -- had grown up in this industry elsewhere,

24

and universally told us that the -- this is the

25

way the people have done it elsewhere for years
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1

and they did not -- they've never understood why

2

the county did not have rules and regulations

3

and Charter amendments that would do this.

4

so we wrote,

5

them, to put it in there.

6

major change.
I

7

as I

And

said earlier, this out with
We think that's a

We just ...

think our major change has been just

8

in the general wording of this and making sure

9

that we adhere to the County Charter.

We've

10

talked to attorneys.

We have talked to the

11

people within the Administration including the

12

County Clerk, that we do this thing correctly.

13

The last thing in the world we want to do

14

I

15

find you put all this work and they say,

16

you forget to put a ... "

and

know of a place where this happened -- is to

17

I

"Huh,

do not disagree with what Corporation

18

Counsel has said that this could be put together

19

in a manner that would be more correctly put

20

down.

21

submitting the letter and the document so that

22

when you

23

the resolution then says to Corporation Counsel,

24

"Please put this in whatever format you feel is

25

correct."

iile have

that was the purpose in

if you decide to go to a resolution,

Can that then be

changed~

Sure.
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1

Does that change our petition gathering?

2

all, because we have the ability to modify that.

3

And so we'll do it the way you guys want to do

4

it is what it amounts to.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Fisher.

Thank you.
Before I recognize Mr. Molina, an4 the

8
9

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

6

7

Not at

Chair apologizes because the Chair's name was

10

put into a mix here again on Mr.

Fisher's

11

comments,

12

simply a facilitator in a meeting between the

13

COMET representatives and the Administration,

14

and that what he just depicted was not a

15

position that your Chair took as an individual

16

member.

17

be a little more careful in how he depicts

18

things that occur because I hate to keep on

19

trying to correct him on what the actual

20

occurrence was.

I want to state that your Chair was

And again, I ask Mr. Fisher if he can

21

MR. FISHER:

I didn't understand what you just said.

22

CHAIR KANE:

You put me in with the administrative

23

folks and the position that they took, and I was

24

simply -- myself and the staff was there simply

25

to assist in the exchange and the interaction of
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1

2
3

4

our discussions, and that ...
MR. FISHER:

But there were other Council Members who

were there, too, so ...
CHAIR KANE:

No, there wasn't.

There was only one --

5

there was only one Council Member in that

6

meeting so let's be clear on what you're

7

representing to the body, so I just wanted to

8

make that clear, Members.

Thank you.

Mr. Molina?

9

10

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA;

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

My first question is directed to

11

12

Mr. Young.

Mr. Young, in the COMET proposal

13

the -- my understanding is, as I look at it, the

14

property will be assessed at 100 percent fair

15

market value.

16

market value does the department assess

17

currently assess properties at, is that the

18

same?

19

MR. YOUNG:

What percentage of the fair

The County currently, by ordinance, is

20

required to make an assessment of the property,

21

so the postcard that Mr. Fisher is referencing

22

is the card that is sent out to all taxpayers

23

and does represent what the County has assessed

24

as the fair market value.

25

Now, I think there needs to be a
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1

distinction, because if Mr. Fisher is having

2

some objection to the description of that, we

3

put that value at the time that we do the

4

assessment.

5

owner can sell the property for -

6

has been

7

the current real estate market by its very

8

nature, you do have people that are, I

9

classify, selling properties at a premium

ltile don I t dictate what the prope'rty
so there

a lot of the problem has been that

wo~ld

10

meaning that when we do the assessed value,

the

11

County is making some determination of what it

12

feels is the fair market value.

13

value at the time of sale, though, might be

14

you know,

15

Arguably, it could be that is

16

fair market value,

Fair market

that might be a better indication.
that is the

so that is the distinction.

Now, the County, by ordinance, is

17
18

required to assess on 100 percent of that value

19

that it determines to be assessed, so we

20

don't

21

there are factors such as the homeowners

22

exemption is removed after that total

23

100 percent assessment or the Circuit Breaker is

24

applied after that 100 percent assessment.

25

you know, we will assess

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

of course,

That helps
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a little

1

me understand your process

bit better

2

when factoring in issues like exemptions.

3

You make reference to your letter

the

4

January 17th letter, page 4.

5

four bullet points as to

6

principles, as I read it, intended to achieve

7

equity.

9

four main

Number 3, it states,

8

In there, you had

"The system should

discourage dishonesty rather than punishing
I'm -- correct me if I'm wrong.

I'm

10

honesty."

11

making the assumption that the system

12

implying the proposal from COMET versus what the

13

county has?

14

clarification on that comment,

15

should discourage dishonesty rather than

16

punishing honesty."

17

MR. YOUNG:

Sure.

are you

Could you just add further
"The system

Although this comment -- this

18

particular comment was in reference directly to

19

this response from the Chairman's office

20

from Chair Kane's office,

21

points that I would say we look to for all real

22

property tax systems.

23

current system is 100 percent the best system

24

that is in existence, but the current system,

25

whatever revisions by ordinance or by Charter or

or

these are the four

It's not to say that the
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1

that the Council sees fit, whatever policies and

2

processes that are in place that the

3

Administration -- that the Administration puts

4

into practice should not encourage or reward

5

dishonesty.

6

and I'll leave it at that, Mr. Molina.

7

So it's more of a general statement

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

And my

8

final question for you, Mr. Young, have you

9

looked at other jurisdictions, I presume, since

10

this proposed initiative has been brought

11

forth -- have you looked at other jurisdictions

12

with something similar to what COMET is

13

proposing?

14

MR. YOUNG:

I have looked at other jurisdictions that

15

do have similar -- there isn't any system out

16

there that is 100 percent exact, so there's

17

we have looked at other areas that have very

18

similar components for the components that we

19

are interested in.

20

And again, to make

to reiterate my

21

point, there are components, I feel,

in this

22

proposal that are

23

worthwhile, of benefit to the County, of benefit

24

to the Administration and of benefit to the

25

taxpayer.

- that are good and

So we have evaluated and looked at
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1

other jurisdictions, as well as evaluating what

2

are the ultimate impacts to practical government

3

operations.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And what were some of the

5

ramifications of the jurisdictions that you

6

looked at

7

you give us specifics as to what jurisdictions

8

you looked at?

9

Maui County, resort area, something as close to

10

11

I guess the pros and cons?

And can

I would presume areas similar to

like what our conununity is made of?

MR. YOUNG:

No, I have not looked at it from that

12

perspective.

We're looking at similar

13

jurisdictions or sizes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

MR. YOUNG:

Right.

These are more

Systems?

Correct.

Systems that have

16

acquisition based or have some way capped their

17

tax rate or tax bills, and to try and see what

18

the overall effect has been on government

19

operation, basically.

20

And the jury is not in on it yet because

21

a lot of these systems -- a lot of these

22

jurisdictions are less than ten years since

23

introduction.

24

State of California, and there's only adequate

25

components of the proposition 13, which was

So the biggest one would be the
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1

referenced that mirror this particular item.

2

There are ...
The thing that makes it difficult in

3

4

comparison to California is that the California

5

tax system is on a State level, not at the

6

County level.

7

are funded at the State level that the County

8

does not have -- that the County of Maui doesn't

9

have to pay.

10

There's a lot of expenses that

Education is the obvious one.

There are also a number of financing

11

methodologies that the state of California has

12

that the County does not have,

13

of California can finance various improvements

14

or infrastructure projects separate from real

15

property tax, separate from State issuance

16

Budget.

17

create a lot more -- comparable would be like

18

Maui County's special assessment districts or a

19

if we had a business improvement district where

20

we can pass along direct costs to a select area.

21

And that is the way that the State of California

22

has overcome some of its fiscal challenges in

23

terms of limiting its tax intake.

24
25

In other words,

such as the State

they can

they can

And there are other jurisdictions.
Within the State of Florida, there are some
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1

some resort areas, I'd like to classify them.

2

They're more retirement communities that have

3

enacted similar measures to cap increases for

4

tax bills and of various levels of success.

5

It has affected -- in those instances,

6

the biggest effect has been for new residents in

7

that there is a -- seems to be an argument that

8

there is a disparity in terms of tax bills from

9

one resident to another, in terms of if they

10

have like properties and it's based largely on

11

duration of residency, which is very similar to

12

this concept, although it may not be 100 percent

13

the same.

14

So in conclusion, I would just say that

15

it's -- the comparisons are not -- are not

16

exact, and there's different components.

17

Mr. Moto's comments that there are,

18

various -- they're significant and major

19

components in this one larger charter, and

20

that's what we have looked at,

21

components and by doing the comparison in other

22

jurisdictions.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

you know,

those individual

Thank you.

Questions for Mr. Fisher and Mr. Tavares
related to your proposal in Section 2
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1

Subsection B, it reads in part,

"Anyone 55 or

2

older that resides in a property that meets the

3

homeowner category requirements may transfer

4

their then-current tax bill to a replacement

5

dwelling of equal or lesser value located in

6

Maui County and purchased or constructed by that

7

person as their principal residence."

8

Can you give me more insight on why 55,

9

for example, was used as a number and what will
this accomplish?

10

11

MR. FISHER:

This has taken ...

12

CHAIR KANE:

Can you use your microphone, please?

13

MR.

Sorry.

FISHER:

This was taken from what is

14

called Proposition 60 in the State of

15

California, which actually did it multi-county

16

so they actually -- people could sign on and you

17

could move from Orange County to Palm Springs

18

and do this.

19

bag of worms.

20

We did not try to get into that

The concept of 55 came from there.

21

Could it be 65 could it by 60?

Of course.

22

idea of it and the reason for it is a pretty

23

simple one:

24

they've got a great big house,

25

nesters, they wanted to move into something

The

Somebody has a whole bunch of kids,
they were empty
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1

smaller but their house has gone up so much in

2

value that the move would bankrupt them from

3

having to pay the taxes every year because they

4

live on a fixed income; therefore, if they could

5

take that old tax rate with them, then that

6

precludes the possibility of doing that.

7

a good

What happens?

8
9

is it a good thing?

house.

Is it

Sure.

They sell their old

The County then in this case, or the

10

State in the case of California, gets the

11

increase in the value of the house they sell and

12

so it is a plus plus for everybody involved.

13

really -- the real estate people love this thing

14

because it really does move real estate and

15

allows seniors to be able to, in the sense of

16

having not to stay in a great big house, which

17

is hard to take care of.

18

to take care of the house, they've got to take

19

care of the lawn and all those kinds of things

20

versus living in -

21

You know,

It

they've got

without being bankrupted.

Because California has had some problems

22

of similar to here in the fact that -- I had a

23

friend who bought a house in 1951, as an

24

example, back there for $75,000.

25

now worth two million.

His house is

His assessment is
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If he had to pay two million

1

400,000.

2

because he's retired, he would have to move, the

3

whole instance there.

4

big house.

5

assume stay in my house for the rest of my

6

life."

7

many, many, many, many years, not, he's

8

certainly since '65.

And he said, "It's not a

I only had one kiddo so I'd just'

And he has been a friend of mine for
'51 but

It's a marvelous thing for those people

9
10

who do want to move because if he were to go

11

take his tax assessment with him to a new piece

12

of property, he'd be in fat city but he doesn't

13

want to do that, he wants to live in Huntington

14

Beach.

15

So that's the philosophy behind it.

Is

16

this an absolute necessity?

17

stimUlates real estate, not artificially, not

18

artificially, but allows those people to move

19

very nicely into another place.

20

love to see the State of Hawaii say,

21

you do it interisland, inter-county the way that

22

California has done it."

23

great.

24

go do it that way?

25

separate -- probably a State, issue not a County

No.

We think it

And I would
"We'll let

I think it would

We've only got four counties so

not

But that's a whole
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1

issue just to allow this to happen.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

MR. FISHER:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

CHAIR KANE:

9

10

Does that answer your question?
That's it.

Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Mr. Pontanilla, thank you for your

7
8

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

5
6

Okay.

patience.

We apologize.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much,

Chair.
Question for Mr. Moto.

11

When you had

12

your conversation with the Bond Counsel, did we

13

request -- or did you request for any written

14

response so that we can have a document in front

15

of us?

16

If not,

can we get one?

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair, the Bond Counsel

17

said he would provide something in writing if we

18

wanted it.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Mr. Moto, and I guess Mr. Young, both of

21

you indicated that what was presented to us

22

what is being presented is more in the form of

23

an ordinance.

24

utilize this thing here, if this thing should go

25

through, as a working document to create that

As far as that,

I guess we can
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2

ordinance in regards to tax reform.
Question for Mr. Fisher or Mr. Tavares

3

regarding Section 2-A.

And I note in the middle

4

of the paragraph there, you know,

5

refinancing of the property where an ownership

6

does not change or changing the ownership by

7

placing the property into a living trust does

8

not cause an adjustment in the assessment:"

"However,

Earlier, we had a testifier that said if

9
10

she was going to add to her house,

11

would be considered as new construction and,

12

therefore, would be taxed at a higher rate

13

should we roll back to 2004.

14

I think it clears that up.

15

that addition

So by adding that,

My question, though, is in regards to

16

affordable housing.

How does this affect those

17

families earning between 80 percent, 100 percent

18

median income that want to do that upward

19

mobili ty

20

there will always be people in that category

21

moving from 80 percent maybe to 100 percent or

22

to 100 percent median income level, therefore,

23

purchasing a home that is more comfortable for

24

their family needs.

25

families'?

movement so that -- you know,

How does this affect those
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MR. FISHER:

Thank you, Council Member Molina

(sic).

2

There's really two answers to that:

3

we have very carefully looked into the concept

4

of how does this affect affordable housing?

5

you heard a couple of testifiers say when a

6

piece of property, which is being rented to

7

somebody else -- and I don't care whether it's

8

an ohana, whether it's income property or

9

whatever -- gets a $1200 a year increase in its

10

taxes,

11

The renter.

12

for the rental market,

13

person.

One is that

And

guess who pays that extra $100 a month?

So if it is limited, it is a boon
for the lower income

In specific answer to the point that you

14
15

just made, if, in fact,

16

home and you put on a $100,000 addition,

17

for the sake of discussion -- our neighbor next

18

door just did that.

19

new family mewber and he put a $100,000 addition

20

on that.

21

is the addition, not a restructuring of the

22

entire.

23

of time.

24

the way it is.

25

you've got a $500,000
just

He added a bedroom for a

The increase in the assessed valuation

That has been true since the beginning
That is not unique to this.

That's

But on the other hand, if somebody does
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1

put a $100,000 addition on his house, why

2

shouldn't that person pay the tax rate at what

3

rate?

4

says, of what it was.

5

value?

6

a $200,000 assessment on a $400,000 value home,

7

just as a discussion, and puts a $100,000

8

addition, then his assessment would go to

9

$300,000 not 500,000.

The full market value, like the card
What is the full market

Whatever he paid for it.

So if he's got

You do not reassess the

10

entire property just because you put an

11

addition.

12

Same thing is true for a pool or an

13

ohana or a fence or any kind of structure on the

14

building.

15

a swimming pool in a house that I had in Newport

16

Beach.

17

tax bill came out plus $25,000 exactly to the

18

nickel and they said, "This is how much that

19

went up."

20

two percent so that's the way, I guess, the

21

system works.

22

That has never been an issue.

I put

It was $25,000 and they came -- my next

By the way, all your property went up

Does that answer your question?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Kind of.

What I was

23

looking for, though, is if a family that was

24

making 80 percent of median income and he's at a

25

certain level, he can purchase a home maybe for
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1

100 -- maybe $200,000.

2

opportunity to move up, maybe purchase a home at

3

100 percent median income, maybe he can purchase

4

a home for $250,000, with this particular

5

document, the taxes that he pays at the time

6

does not move when he does his upward mobility;

7

am I right?

8
9

MR. FISHER:

Then he has an

Yes, that is true.

The only time that

occurs is when you do the 55 and older.

Could

10

the County Council generate an ordinance that

11

says we will allow certain people at certain

12

income levels to do that?

13

is -- this does not preclude.

14

55 but it does not preclude you passing an

15

ordinance that says this can happen.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

MR. FISHER:

Absolutely.

There

This includes the

Yeah.

In other words, we are not excluding

18

that with this.

19

make these things so that,

20

nothing else can be done with this," and blah

21

blah blah.

22

that you have the opportunity to go and modify,

23

change,

24
25

We were very careful not to

We left it

"and therefore

on purpose so

fix ...
Somebody has said,

"Gee, couldn't we do

for the low income new buyer, as an example, a
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1

one-time -- your first house you buy, you get to

2

buy it at half the tax rate -- I don't care what

3

you want to call it

4

value and so forth.

5

the County Council, wish to provide that kind of

6

incentive for people to buy, and it is a real

7

incentive, then I think that's a wonderful

8

thing.

or 50 percent of the
Is that okay?

If you, as

This does not exclude that.

9

And Corporation Counsel, would you agree

10

with that statement that we are not excluding in

11

that statement, we are merely including the

12

specifics that are there in that paragraph?

13

am not a lawyer.

14
15
16

MR. MOTO:

I'm sorry.

I

I don't ...
I'm afraid I didn't follow the

last part of the conversation.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah.

My question to

17

Mr. Fisher was, you know, when you look at

18

affordable housing our policy and we always talk

19

about upward movement, you know, improving

20

your

21

two-bedroom to a three-bedroom tc a four-bedroom

22

depending on your income.

23

had said was that if you do that upward mobility

24

or upward movement, then if you were paying

25

X-amount for $200,000 for your taxes, when you

well, not your lifestyle but from a

And what Mr. Fisher
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move up to like, say, a 250,000 or $300,000

2

home, then your tax rate would be based on the

3

250 or $300,000 home?

4

MR. MOTO:

Yes, that sounds

1'm assuming that in

5

those upgrades that the -- that this person

6

would be buying -- buying the new home and

7

selling the old?

8

assessment would be -- on the new home would be

9

based upon the purchase price -- as I understand

And so basically the

10

it under the proposal would be based upon the

11

purchase price for the new home, whatever that

12

might happen to be.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Chair, you

14

know, Chairman Hokama provided us with a

15

Schedule A that I thought was very interesting.

16

I was wondering if the staff could kind of

17

explain what was presented to us.

18

indicated that over several past years, you

19

know, we've reduced taxes here in Maui County,

20

so if staff can kind of

21

was given to us.

22
23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

It had been

the handout that

Mr. Taguchi, are you prepared to respond

to the request by Member Pontanilla?
MR. TAGUCHI:

Yes, Chair Hokama (sic).
I was asked to prepare Schedule A, which
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1

basically gives a summary of the tax relief

2

provided through the Fiscal Years 2006 and 2007

3

Budget.

4

of explain what those differences are.

There are some assumptions here to kind

Looking at Schedule A, the first section

5
6

explains what occurred in Fiscal Year 2006

7

Budget.

8

would have been charged if there was no

9

relief provided in the 2006 Budget for various

Basically, the schedule looks at what
t~x

10

income levels,

11

rate that was passed in the 2006 Budget and the

12

increase in exemption that was passed in the

13

2006 Budget.

14

and i t compares i t against the

For example, if a home was valued at

15

$500,000, it's

16

was no tax relief provided, the homeowner would

17

have paid $1,385.

18

in the Fiscal 2006 Budget, the homeowner pays

19

$1,050 which provided tax relief of $335.

20

upon the $335, the relief equates to

21

approximately $995,000 in terms of increased

22

valuation.

23

percentage.

24
25

under the proposed -- if there

With the tax relief provided

Based

And the final column is just a

It also goes on the show in 2007 what
relief are provided to different levels.
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1

take that $500,000 home again in 2007, the

2

relief provided was $550 which equates to

3

$220,000 in valuation.

4

schedule just shows the significant relief ihat

5

was provided in the 2006 and 2007 budgets passed

6

by the Council.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Lance.

Thank you, Chair.

8

9

So basically the

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, we have gone a round of

10

question and answers.

11

time as well as aware of the attendance of this

12

meeting.

13

but I know we're going to lose at least one

14

member to a prior commitment and I don't know

15

the status of the rest of you.

16

The Chair is aware of the

The Chair is open to further questions

The Chair is here at your disposal so

17

I -- you know, I can go as long as we have a

18

quorum to consider what course of action that we

19

take, if any.

20

of the time and what we have with us.

21
22
23

Ms.

But again, the Chair is cognizant

I'm sorry.

Member Pontanilla, I

know you had a previous engagement, so please ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

I do

24

have a previous meeting at Cameron Center.

25

just want to thank Mr. Tavares and Mr. Fisher
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1

for coming out with this proposal.

2

it's a step going forward.

3

your comments administration, Kalbert, Brian and

4

Stacy.

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
much.

8

meeting.

10

11

CHAIR KANE:

And thank you for

Tracy.

7

9

At least

Oh, Tracy.

Thank you very

I hate to leave but I need to get to this
Thank you again, guys.
Okay.

Thank you.

Member Johnson?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

One of the things that I

12

would really, I guess, like to -- besides the

13

response from Bond Counsel,

14

us at least try and move forward with looking at

15

something that would be appropriate in terms of

16

a resolution that we could actually put on the

17

ballot, and then look what portion that is more

18

ordinance like could be put in the form of an

19

ordinance so that we actually have something to

20

look at and consider and deliberate on.

21

really think that the voters should have an

22

opportunity to look at this, and it may be more

23

than one scenario or more than one proposal.

24
25

I would like to see

I

So Mr. Chair, I personally would like to
see something like that come back for our
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1

consideration because there's not a great deal

2

of time left.

3

and I know Mr. Young did say there were

4

components that he felt were worthy of suppo'rt,

5

I would at least like to see if we would have

6

something before us that we could consider that

7

we could actually take action on that would be

8

put into a forum or a format that we coulq

9

consider.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

10

11

And if the Council does feel

CHAIR KANE:

And before I recognize you, Member

12

Anderson,

13

can provide specific direction and language to

14

be drafted, you're relying on the Chair and the

15

staff of the committee to do that for you, and I

16

don't think it's in the best interest frankly of

17

the body to have your Chair be responsible for

18

drafting something without, again, the guidance

19

of the body to have something for discussion,

20

so I ...

21

let me be clear that unless this body

Members, you know, again, whether I have

22

a position or I, you know, as an individual

23

member of one of nine of us, I don't think it's

24

the Chair's position to be putting something

25

that represents my position as a starting pOint
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1

in this case.

I think we need to recognize the

2

proposal that's before us.

3

to see some adjustment to that, then I would

4

suggest, merely a suggestion, that we

5

you can see, the Chair provided exclusive time

6

just for this issue on this regularly scheduled

7

meeting and the Chair is prepared to make the

8

next meeting exclusive to this issue despite

9

comments that we're being driven by what COMET

If the Members want

and as

10

is doing as far as getting signatures.

11

being driven by that, it's being driven by the

12

fact that we know that this is important and we

13

want to make sure that we have the time to get

14

this thing discussed.

It's not

And I will have comments at some point,

15
16

maybe not today, but regarding the whole

17

proposal and how we're going about it, but I'll

18

reserve that and allow the body to provide your

19

Chair with the direction to move forward.
Member Johnson,

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

continue.
You know, apropos of

22

that, I guess my question would be to either

23

Mr. Young or Mr. Moto because I'm not an

24

attorney, I don't know how to draft you know

25

proposed Charter amendments.
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1

even some examples that you would be able to

2

provide us with similar Charter amendments or

3

other things that have been proposed in other

4

jurisdictions that we could follow along at

5

least something that would be more appropriate

6

for consideration by the electorate?

7

don't know if it exists, and if it doesn't,

8

just let us know.

9
10

CHAIR KANE:
MR. MOTa:

I just
then

Mr. Moto, are you prepared to respond?
Yes, Mr. Chairman.

I ' l l just answer to

11

what extent -- how I think my particular office

12

can best assist the committee.

13

property tax reform can become very complicated

14

and a lot depends on what kind of reform

15

measures this body wants to consider and review,

16

it would be an enormous help to us in particular

17

if we're going to assist you in that to know

18

what particular policy items you'd like to

19

pursue.

Because real

Because I'll tell you that just

20

for

21

example,

22

was submitted by COMET, we could, in theory, do

23

that but it would be difficult because we didn't

24

draft the initial document, number one, and

25

secondly, we're not even sure that's what you
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1

are going to pursue anyway, and it's extremely

2

time consuming and difficult work.

3

Therefore, if we could get some

4

indication from the committee as to -- some

5

direction in terms of what areas in particular

6

you'd like to pursue, then we can do a much more

7

efficient job of coming up with a proper draft.

8

And yes, could we look at other jurisdictions?

9

We could.

10
11

I'll put a footnote here -- this is

more for the record than for ...
Earlier,

I talked about the Kauai County

12

Charter proposal and I expressed how I disagreed

13

with some of the reasons and conclusions reached

14

in that litigation.

15

will -- I also have to add that I would not use

16

necessarily that County Charter amendment

17

proposal as a model, because for reasons that

18

were not cited by the judge, I do feel that that

19

proposal does have deficiencies, but those were

20

deficiencies that were not used as a basis for

21

the judgment so in some ways I agree with the

22

end conclusion but not for the reasons cited.

23

Even though that is so, I

But yes, we could, if you give us some

24

direction,

try to,

you know,

come up with

25

measures that reflect your goals.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, Mr. Chair, and I would

2

be happy to just transmit what I, as one member

3

of the committee, feel I could support.

4

think you heard one of the comments that I m'ade

5

earlier about, you know, my concern with the

6

range or the inability -- I guess Mr. Smith

7

raised the issue earlier to of somehow the

8

Council not having the ability to set a rate on

9

an annual basis within the Budget.

And I

So that

10

would be one of my areas of concern but I will

11

put something together and just transmit it to

12

you in an e-mail.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And before I recognize you,

14

Member Anderson, again just to respond to your

15

comments, Member Johnson because you're

16

directing them at the Chair, again the Chair, I

17

think, would consider it fair that the body as a

18

whole provide the direction.

19

sends something in e-mail, then I'm going to

20

be

21

going to be dealing with eight or nine different

22

components or aspects or variations, if you

23

will, which doesn't provide your Chair with a

24

clear direction of how to proceed in light of

25

the time constraints that we're dealing with and

And if everybody

you know, your Chair and the staff is

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

133
BF 6/20/06

1

the depth of what we're talking about.

2

So I just pose those issues.

We welcome

3

those comments, but keep in mind the

4

realities that we face regarding what's before

5

us.

6

put a resolution that

7

getting a vote up or down on what we have before

8

us, the proposal.

the

Technically, we could, at the next meeting,
and then it ends up

And I think Mr. Fisher cited to us that

9
10

really it's not

we're not asking you folks

11

about the merit of the Charter amendment, which

12

I'm kind of mixed about because he also said

13

it's all on the table, but he wants the public

14

to decide that, not us.

15

a mixed message in your Chair's opinion, but

16

it's difficult for us in the time that's given

17

to us ...

So, you know, there was

And that's why your Chair has committed

18
19

exclusive time now and will for the next

20

meeting.

21

next regularly scheduled meeting, which we'll

22

have to schedule a di=ferent day because that's

23

Fourth of July and we're closed for business on

24

that day, but that's your Chair's commitment as

25

far as providing another time and then putting a

Unfortunately,

Fourth of July is the
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resolution on there and then we,

you know, have

2

our discussion and if that's what

3

timeframe that COMET is requesting for us to

4

consider, it may just come down to that, whi'ch

5

is unfortunate because it takes away our ability

6

to have some real substantive deliberative,

7

know, processes engaged to have this discussion.

to meet the

you

8

So, you know, your Chair is frustrated

9

as many of you but, you know,it is what it is.

10

The reality is the time constraints.

11

accept what you have Member Johnson, as well as

12

any other member,

13

all we can do is extract out the common threads

14

for all the proposals.

17
18
19
20
21

if you have things to send but

Member Anderson, thank you for your

15
16

We'll

patience.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

If you

could ...
CHAIR KANE:

Your microphone

, ma'am.

Thank

you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

If you

22

could just give us a brief overview of the time

23

constraints we're dealing with, that would be

24

helpful.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Our understanding is that the County
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Clerk's Office has to have something in front of

2

them by the end of August, if I'm not mistaken.

3

23rd, yeah,

4

time, give or take whatever it is but close to

5

that.

so August 23rd, I believe, is the

And I believe we would need -- although

6
7

it's a resolution,

8

on separate days by six Members to support a

9

Charter amendment going onto the ballot, and so

I

believe is it two readings

10

there are other factors.

11

that -- also there's a ten percent.

12

Members.

13

here to cite that information for you,

14

Ms. Anderson.

15

And that -- if we did

Forgive me,

Let me just pull that note that I have

So yes, by resolution, Council adoption

16

after two readings on separate days and passed

17

by a vote of six or more Members.

18

The second option we have is by petition

19

to the Council signed by not less than

20

ten percent, which Mr.

Fisher cited, but that

21

would require there would be public hearing.

22

Council must hold a public hearing and determine

23

whether the amendment proposed shall be

24

submitted to the voters for approval.

25

the Council has the option yes or no on that

So then
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one.

2

MR. FISHER:

Five to four.

3

CHAIR KANE:

And that would call for, I believe, a

4

simple majority, five-four.
The third option is the Council must

5

6

determine to adopt the resolution within 45

7

after that petition, so the 45 days by simple

8

majority.
And then the final one is if we do not

9

10

move with anything, then COMET or the entity

11

would be required to have 20 percent and that

12

would avoid any type of public hearing proposal

13

or process, and it would go directly to.

14

But all of that, the deadline is

15

August 23rd, so thank you for your patience,

16

Member Anderson.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I appreciate that.

18

that means we have how much more time in this

19

committee?

20

out the meeting days.

21

Council

22

CHAIR KANE:

So

And I'm sure your staff has scoped
We need a month at

to get it passed out of Council.
Technically, yes, if you look at just

23

regularly scheduled meetings.

There's also the

24

option of having special meetings if, you

25

knovJ -- again, your Committee Chair doesn't have
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control of that calendar, Council Chair would

2

have the control of the special meeting status,

3

but this committee, I would see us having at

4

least one, at the max two additional

5

provide discussion in this area, and then again

6

a direction.

meeting~

to

So technically, our next meeting, say we

7

8

don't have a resolution on the table but that

9

meeting is geared towards making a determination

10

as a full conunittee body to determine that

11

direction.

12

which is the next regularly scheduled meeting,

13

we can have the vehicle, which is the

14

resolution, whether it's for the Charter

15

amendment,

16

we decide not to do anything, but at least at

17

the next meeting we can make some determination.

18

19
20
21

F~d

then the final meeting in July,

for -- we decide it's an ordinance,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

And then

your staff would be providing the resolution?
CHAIR KANE:

Yes, we would

we would have to be put

in that position to provide a resolution, so
again your Chair is going to by very clear that

23

the direction of the content of that resolution

24

will be decided by the body, not by your Chair.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

And so should the
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body decide to make changes to this -- and I

2

know that Mr. Fisher and Mr. Tavares have both

3

said that they're open to changes on the table,

4

those changes are to be decided on very quickly.

5

And I appreciate the conflict that you mentioned

6

because let me just ask Mr. Fisher if I can.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

Please.
If the Councilor this

committee were to make changes that may be -- I

10

mean I

11

if they made a change that was so substantive

12

that you couldn't support it, would you then go

13

ahead and do your petition, you know,

14

separately?

15

MR. FISHER:

know you're saying you're open, but what

It's too open-ended a question to answer

16

out right, but the point that I made at the very

17

beginning was we are open to discuss anything,

18

so we may look at it and say, "Gee, that's too

19

big a change," et cetera, et cetera.

20

really -- that doesn't make any sense to us

21

because ...

22

We

Our feeling is around the community that

23

if this gets on the ballot -- and we have no

24

question in our mind whatsoever that's going to

25

happen -- this is a two to one, three to one,
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four to one, it will absolutely go through, but

2

we would like it to be cooperatively and,

3

therefore, if you have something that will cause

4

this to be a better piece of legislation, as'

5

Brian Moto just said, and the Members of the

6

Council, Council Member Johnson just said, we

7

are not going to stomp our feet and run around

8

and be belligerent and unreasonable, so

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
MR.

FISHER:

Well, then maybe Mr. Fisher.

-- the name of the game is cooperation

11

and compromise and not we're going to get our

12

own way no matter what.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

MR. FISHER:

Right.

There is a point of no return, like

15

flying to the Mainland, at which it's better

16

just to keep on going.

17

that is.

18

August, for sure -- or the 24th, but ...

19

I don't know what date

It certainly is before the 23rd of

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Mr. Chair, I won't take up
co~mittee

20

any more time in the

because I know

21

everyone's tired, but I will speak with

22

Mr. Fisher and Mr. Tavares because I'd like to

23

know -- you know, originally it was going to be

24

an ordinance and there was going to be the

25

Council was going to set the tax rates and it
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was just, you know, a cap on the assessments and

2

all that, and now it's kind of morphed into

3

something more substantial and I'd like to know

4

why you have put in fixed tax rates with a cap

5

on the tax rates, and if there is some -- you

6

know, why you made that change.

7

MR. FISHER:

I think that the basic reason was that

8

Bill and I and all the rest of the members,

9

we've got too many gray hairs to go do this

10

every two years forever and we just felt that

11

Bill is going to be 103 some day, but our

12

feeling was that it would be better if we took

13

all of the aspects of this and did it once.

14

You know, the comment was made by

15

Corporation Counsel about it's long, it looks

16

like an ordinance and so forth, my only question

17

would be, yeah, I don't disagree with that but

18

they have never seen one of these before.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

MR. FISHER:

Right.

There has never been one of these in the

21

county of Maui, so we did what we thought was

22

all-inclusive in this case.

23

with an alternative that makes sense, we are not

24

going to be unreasonable and that, I hope,

25

answers the question because it's too broad to

If you come to us
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1
2
3

give you a direct answer.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Fisher.
Thank you, Chair.

4

5

Yeah, that's good enough.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Members,

6

just one final comment.

It

7

does not preclude this body from moving forward

8

with its own initiative in this area, which

9

whether or not the COMET group would agree or

10

disagree with i t

11

move forward with ours, that wouldn't stop

12

forward with them moving with theirs but we

13

could move forward with ours as well.

14

that's -- again, and it could be by ordinance,

15

you know, there are so much options out there

16

but there's a lot of -- there's a lot of

17

options.

18

context of a Charter amendment that is creating

19

the constraints of time.

20

say they disagree,

if we

Now,

It's the time factor based in the

And with that, Members

and before I

21

recognize you, Mr. Fisher, the Chair will take

22

this opportunity to provide a short comment on

23

the general concern of the approach that is

24

being taken.

25

difficult given the enormity of the proposal is

And that is that what I find
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that if we move forward in a Charter amendment

2

fashion, it will remove the legislative body

3

from their process of deliberation and it will

4

not allow the public citizenry to have a venue

5

to debate this issue.

6

That's why we have a representative government.

7

And so it makes it very difficult if we

8

go with the Charter amendment to let the people

9

decide, it takes away really the opportunity for

That's why we're here.

10

the public to have an understanding of the

11

debate, and that's why they transferred that

12

trust and reliance on all of us as elected

13

officials.

14

So that's an inherent issue that I carry

15

with the concern of the amendment

16

amendment request, and, you know, there's other

17

things that we could talk about, obviously we

18

don't have the time now, and I think again as

19

your Chair committed to, we will make the next

20

meeting exclusive, it's not something that we'll

21

put on the back burner, but this will be the top

22

front and center item on the next regularly

23

scheduled Budget and Finance Committee meeting.

Charter

24

MR. FISHER:

Mr. Chair?

25

CHAIR KANE:

Just very brief if you can, please,
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1

2

Mr. Fisher.
MR. FISHER:

Thank you.

If this body should come up with not a

3

Charter amendment but an ordinance, which

4

perhaps incorporates a lot of this, perhaps

5

since Mr. Young made some,

6

positive comments about willing to talk about

7

some positive things that were here, absolutely

8

and positively we are not going to say again,

9

"We're going to go do this no matter."

I thought, rather

10

you can do i t through the mechanism of a

11

charter

What if

I'm sorry.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Ordinance.

13

MR. FISHER:

Of an ordinance, we are not going to be

14

disagreeable to that.

15

remember, our very, very first choice in the way

16

to do this.

17

everyone here and I -- hopefully the people in

18

Maui realize that that's what we're trying to do

19

is to cooperate, compromise, do what is best,

20

but we feel that major tax reform is absolutely

21

and positively the thing that we need to do.

22

And it's not a question of whether we do it,

23

it's how we do it.

24

ordinance rather than a Charter amendment, then

25

I'm not going to sit here and fight about that.

So I

We have

that was,

just want to make sure that

And if the how becomes an
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Fisher.

2

MR. FISHER:

Thank you very much for your spending

3

4

all afternoon with us, sir.
CHAIR KANE:

No problem.
Member Molina?

5

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

Yes.

Thank you for your patience.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and

I'm aware of the time and I'll just try to keep

10

i t very brief.

More of a comment than a

11

question.

12

your next meeting and I ' l l have more questions

13

for Mr. Tavares and Mr. Fisher, but I just want

14

to thank you them and I appreciate the intent of

15

looking at reform.

16

as well as others, have helped the Council to

17

get the wheels turning or have the seeds planted

18

toward reform and making adjustments over the

19

last two years, Mr. Chairman.

20

The Council has made,

I think at a

I look forward to

I think your organization,

I believe,

21

significant adjustments with regard to rates and

22

the homeowners exemption, so whatever happens,

23

whether this ends up as a Charter amendment

24

proposal or an ordinance, the wheels are

25

already -- have been moving, so, you know, your
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attempt Mr. Fisher and Mr. Tavares and the rest

2

of COMET have not gone in vain, you know, so to

3

speak, so I just wanted to thank you folks for

4

at least making the Council and the rest of 'the

5

public aware of the concerns with regard to

6

property taxes.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any further comment?

Member Mateo.

8

9

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you.

And I echo the sentiments of Member

10
11

Molina and I also would like to ask a comment to

12

seriously take a look from now until the next

13

meeting

14

director had -- you know, provided for us all in

15

writing.

16

Corporation Counsel in their comments as well as

17

comments that were shared to them by the Bond

18

Counsel as well.

19

take a look at the comments that our

Also weigh the considerations of

We've got to find common ground because

20

we're going to go nowhere if you think that your

21

proposal is okay and they don't think it's not

22

okay and we have issues with it, because it's a

23

difficult

24

common ground is probably the best direction at

25

this particular point in time.

it's a complex issue, so finding

And I do concur
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1

that perhaps the ordinance route, you know,

2

could be the more quick route in trying to find

3

a means to addressing especially assessments for

4

your considerations.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Members, we have reached the end

6

of the agenda for this afternoon.

7

echo the comments of the Members in thanking the

8

members of COMET, Mr. Tavares, Mr. Fisher and

9

the other members that are in attendance this

10

I want to

afternoon.
Members, if there are no announcements

11

12

or requests, this meeting for June 20th, 2006 is

13

adjourned.

(Gavel. )

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

15

GRH, JP and CT)

16
17

ACTION:
ADJOURN:

(excused:

DEFER pending further discussion.

5:00 p.m.

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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